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Strategic report

Introductlon

'Bellway Homes lelted (‘the Company’, ‘Bellway’) has recorded yet another excellent set of results with new
records in respect of volume, operating margin and earnings. The Company is taking advantage of the strong
market conditions, contmumg its dlsmplmed growth strategy, whilst maintaining a strict focus on return on capltal
‘employed. :

Strategy for growth -
Notwithstanding the risks to the wider economy following‘ the result of the EU Referendum, the ongeing demand for _
new homes across the' country is strong, supported by a low rate of unemployment and good availability of

affordable mortgage finance, with this further enhanced by the government’s continuing support through the Help to
Buy scheme. Interest rates remain low and the outlook is that this favourable tradmg environment W1ll continue for

the foreseeable future.

 Bellway has a strong balance sheet and operational capacity for growth, trading from 19 geographically spread
divisions, 6 of which have been opened over the last three years. Longer term, there remains a structural shortage of
homes within the UK and Bellway, ‘set against this favourable backdrop, is well placed to continue growing its
contribution to the supply of new homes.

Dividends . ‘
The Compahy paid a dividend of £170.0 million in the year (2015 - £nil).

People and supply chain

This record set of results could not have been achieved without the outstanding contribution of those who work for

and with the Company, enabling Bellway to safely and responsibly increase the number of homes sold for the

seventh successive year. I would like to place on record the Board’s gratitude to all those who have contributed to
_ this outstanding performance.
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Building on our success ‘
Our strategy for growth
Demand Supply. : | Capacity

| Customer demand is robust

across the country

Good quality Jand opportunities at | New 18™ division opened in
attractive rates of return o Coventry during the year and a

further division opened onl
August 2016 in Durham

_Six new divisions opened since
August 2013 '

Help to Buy extended until 2021
in England and enhanced in

-London

Positive planning environment Robﬁst land bank
supported by Housing Bill ‘

Competition in mortgage market
and low interest rates ensure new
homes remain affordable

Labour availability is manageable Balance sheet capacity provides

ability to invest

Household formation rate

1

Disciplined volume growth

1

- Reinvestment in the business which generates

Value creation through:

-growth in NAV

To achieve our overall strategy we employ short and mid-term objectives. Each division and our Head Office teams
are aligned behind this common set of objectives.

Our short and mid-term objectives

Proactive balance Focus on Ensure sufficient

Expand and enhance . Continue to
geographic coverage | investinlandin | sheet management | retention, training | resources are -available
by opening new areas of high . : - and recruitment of | in our specialist Head
divisions principally demand that people ‘Office teams and that
in conurbations meet our robust Company wide
where demand is high | minimum hurdle systems are in place to
and investing further rates - support our expanding
in our existing divisional network in
operational divisional . delivering our growth
structure strategy
Achieve DPP on Build the right Consistently
land praduct excellent

customer service -
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Strategic report (continu'ed)

Company strategy (contmued)

Our operatlonal capacity is currently centred around a nationwide structure of 19 tradmg divisions. The newest of
these divisions are South Midlands which opened in February 2016 and is based in Coventry, and Durham, which
was opened in August 2016. In general, most divisions have an optimal operating capacity of between 500 and 750
new homes per annum. Our strategy of volume growth is therefore best achieved through complementmg capacity
in existing divisions with the expansion of the divisional structure in areas of high demand. .

We have signiﬁcant balance sheet capacity with net assets of £1,251.9 million, which includes net cash of £13.0
million and undrawn bank facilities of £467.5 million. As a result of these factors we have the capacity to invest in
land that either meets or exceeds our investment criteria, which include gross margin and ROCE.

Business model

Building homes, building valqe

: . .  Reinvest profit
Shareholder ' Buy land ' ’ + '
capital o+ ' Build and sell Earnings for
+ Buy materials ) new homes ‘ employees
Bank finance + and +
+ Employ people apartments Payments to sub-
Retained profit ) + [ : which meet contractors
Engage sub- our ) +
. contractors customers’ ' Investment in ]
aspirations 1. communities through
section 106
infrastructure
payments
+
Dividends
The following timeline demonstrates how we create value from purchasing land to selling homes
~
Selecting the Managing the Construction.of Delivering an
right land ﬂ[ planning process Il[ the right product - II[ excellent sales
‘ ) and customer .

care experience

" The detailed aspects of the business model are shown on the next few pages, together with recent progress achieved
and future plans. We also report on the key performance indicators (‘KPIs’) we use to measure our performance
agamst our strategy. . .
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| Strategic report (continued)

- Business model (continued) o

Selectmg the right land -

~ Acquiring high quality sustainable sites in areas of hlgh demand that meet or exceed our financial and non-financial
acquisition criteria is key to the success of the business. : .

Managing the planning process

Work with local planning authorities and communities in ‘compliance with the National Planning Policy Framework
(‘NPPF’) in order to deliver effective and sufficient planning consents for the business. .

Construction of the right product

Providing an appropriate product range on housing and apartment developments at prices that are affordable for our
customers and which are built efficiently and to a hlgh quahty

Delivering an excellent customer experience

Making sure that our customers receive an excellent experience when purchasing a new home, both prior to
and following moving in.

Investing in our people

Providing our employees with a rewarding and fulfilling career, enabling them to achieve their full potential and
deliver high levels of performance, contributing to the success of the business.

Selectingthe right land
Description

- o Land opportunities are identified by our divisional land and planning teams and the strategic land team using
their local knowledge and contacts. A viability assessment and appraisal is prepared by the division, which is
assessed in detail at regional and then Company level, where the final decision is taken on whether or not to
purchase the site. Board approval may also be requnred depending upon the value and nature of the proposed

acquisition. ¢

»  Land acquisitions are considered against a number of criteria, such as gross margin, ROCE capital
requirements, forecast sales rates and planning prognosis.

e  The number of large long-term sites we own is strlctly controlled to avoid havmg too much capital tied up or
concentrated in one location. .

e We often secure land without the benefit of an implementable detailed planning permission (‘DPP), typically.
brownfield sites, and use the expertlse of our land teams to obtam a DPP which thereby adds value and enables
‘higher returns. »

What we rely on

Where sites require planning consent it may take many months to progress a parcel of land from contract through
the planning consent process before we can start building and selling homes. We therefore require our land teams to.
purchase sufficient sites to ensure that we have the necessary amount of land to meet our short-term volume growth
targets as well as a pipeline of land for subsequent years.
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Strategic report (c&ntinued)

Business model (continued)

How this links to strétegy

e  We need to have.an adequate supply of land to meet our volqme' growth aspirations.

e The proposed land acquisition must meet or exceed our minimum gross margin and ROCE acquisitiqﬁ criteria. .
How this links to Corporate Responsnb:hty . ' A

e By building homes on brownﬂeld land we are contrlbutmg to_the regeneratlon of areas m mamly urban.
locations.

 - . By collaborating with local communities We are delivering high quality sustainable housing deve]bpments.
The risks we mitigate — see pages 21 to 28 for further information ’

¢ The inability to source suitable land at our minimum gross margin and ROCE hurdle rates. Durmg the year
there has been no change in this risk.

How W,e performed in 2015/16 ) ‘ )
e  We strengthened the Head Office land team with the appointment of three regional strategic land directors:

e We increased the number of plots we own and control with DPP by 3,468 plots to 24,879 plots. The number of
plots owned and controlled awaiting implementable DPP (‘pipeline’), has reduced by 4,700 to 10,100 plots,
reflecting our success at obtaining DPP in the period and also as a result of the disposal of our interest in

- Barking Riverside Limited. We have an interest in a number of long-term strategic land holdings, of which
6,300 plots have been identified as benefiting from a positive planning status. :

e ° We only acquired land which met or exceeded our minimum acquisition criteria.,
‘Our plans for 2016/17

e We aim to ensure that plots in our owned and controlled land bank with DPP at the year end are sufficient to
meet the followmg year’s growth targets and to progress land through the planning system to contnbute towards
subsequent years’ growth targets.

e We will continue to acquire land which meets or exceeds our acquisition criteria.
‘e . We will continue to focus our land buying on areas of high demand and in sustainable locations..
KPIs '

We have selected the following KPIs because ROCE is a key indicator of how we are delivering our strategy of
building shareholder value which is reliant on land acquisition and the subsequent performance of our .~
developments. Gross margin enables us to monitor the robustness of our land purchasing process and the level of
- profit on land purchases. Failure to have an adequate supply of land would put our ability to achieve-our volume
growth targets under pressure. We therefore link part of the executive directors’ bonuses to the delivery of a
sufficient forward land bank to meet our growth aspirations.
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- Strategic report (continued)

Business model (continued) .
All of these KPIs have improued during the year.

. Forward land bank of plots with DPP available for completion in the following financial year to have 1ncreased
- achieved (2015 ~ achteved)

e ROCE28.1% (2015 - 23.5%(')). -
e Gross margin 25.7% (2015 — 24.2%M).
@ stated before exceptional item.

y
Managing the planning process
Description

e  Our land bank is comprised of three components: i) land with DPP; ii) medium-term plpelme’ land iii)
" strategic long-term land (either owned or under option) which has the benefit of a positive planning status in
approved or emerging local plans.

. Our‘divisional and Head Office planning teams work closely with local authorities and communities to obtain
DPP to construct homes which reflect planning and vernacular requirements. The divisional and Head Office
planning departments progress a combmation of medium- term ‘pipeline’ land and land from our strategic land
bank throughout the planning system.

What we rely on

e  Our planning teams build collaborative relationships with local councils, residents and interest groups so that
our completed developments benefit the communities in which they are built and reflect local need. We also
rely on government support to make improvements to the planning process such as the continuation of the
NPPF. ' '

How this lmks to strategy

K Without sufficient land with DPP we would be unable to achieve its volume growth targets. Furthermore, by )
- not efficiently progressing land through the planning process capital could be tied up in land for longer than
necessary which may result in areduction in ROCE. . }

~e  We continue to focus on acquiring land through our pipeline, often acquiring sites conditionally with a deposiit.
This approach to land buying helps secure a medium-term land supply, without consuming excessive capital.

e  Strategic land helps to augment our land bank and complements our strategy of volume growth.
How this links to Corporate ResponS|b|l|ty

e We consult with local resndents as part ofthe planning process to help us build the ‘homes our customers desnre
locally. ‘

e  We make contributions to local communities through section 106 and Commumty Infrastructure Levy (‘CIL")
payments. . ‘

The risks we'mitigaté

Delays_ and increasing complexity in the planning process. During the year there has been no change in the risk.
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Strategic repo'rt (continued)

Business model (continued)
How we performed in 2015/16
e  Wesecured DPP on land during the year sufficient to meet our requirements for 2016/17.

e The number of plots that were converted from our medium- term plpelme ‘land bank to land wrth DPP
in 2015/16 was 7,265 plots (2015 — 6,909).

¢ -Weinvested in sufficient ‘pipeline’ land to provide plots-to progress through the»planning process.

e  Weincreased the number of strategic plots with a positive planning status from 6,000 to 6,300 plots.
Our plans for 2016/17 '

®  Weaim to have sufficient plots with DPP at 31 July 2017 to meet our 2017/18 volume growth asplratlons

- o We aim to invest in sufficient “pipeline’ Jand to provide plots which can be reliably progressed through the
planning process and replenish land being actively developed without tying up excess capital.

e  Weaim to increase the number of strategic option sites owned to complement the other tiers of the land bank.
KPIs , ' )
These KPIs enable us to monitor the number of plots in each tier of our land bank to ensure these remain sufficient

to help us deliver our strategy of volume growth. At the end of the year we had an appropriate number of plots in
each land bank tler

e  The number of plots' in our owned and controlled Iand bank with DPP was 24, 879 (2015 - 21,411).

e  The number of plots that were acquired directly in to our land bank wrth an 1mplementable DPP in the year
was 4,924 (2015 ~ 2,820). :

e  The number of plots that were converted from our medium-term plpelme land to owned and controlled with a
. -DPP in the year was 7,265 plots (2015 — 6,909). :

e  The number of plots in our ‘pipeline’ land bank fell but remained appropriate at 10,100 (2015 — 14,800). The.
' reduction is due in part to our success at obtaining DPP in the period and also as a result of the disposal of our
interest in Barking Riverside Limited. .

o. The number of plots identified in our strateglc land bank w1th a positive planning status is 6, 300 (2015 -
6,000). v .

Construction of the right product
Description

e We construct a wide range of homes to suita variety of budgets and lifestyles. Our homes are built to specific
building, technical, health and safety regulations and other regulatory requirements as well as to our own
quality standards. . :

e We take very seriously the health and safety of our employees and sub-contractors who work on our srtes and
that of visitors to our sites. .

e  We strive to maintain long-term working relationships with reputable sub-contractors to reduce health and

. safety risks and to ensure the availability and quality of materials and labour. We seek to ensure that we have

suitable building materials available at competitive prices to enable us to construct homes to the high standards
expected of us by our customers, within budget and on time. .
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Strategic report (continued)

Business model (continued) ,

e  We are signatories to the Prompt Payment Code and ensure that our sub- contractors and suppllers are paid in
accordance with contractual requirements.

.« We closely monitor work in progress to ensure that build rates are consistent with sales rates.
-What we rely on

Experienced construction people, strong relationships with skilled sub-contractors and Company purchasing
arrangements with suppliers and manufacturers are key to enabling us to deliver homes built-to the right standard, at
the right time and at the right price.

How this links to strategy

e  The homes we design and -build must meet our customers needs and expectations and we use customer .
feedback to monltor this.

e  Good quality homes enhance customer satisfaction and ultlmately our reputation, which aids our ability to sell
the homes we build. This in turn helps us achieve our strategy of volume growth.

_e  Having suitable ‘materials at competitive prices (controlled through Company purchasing arrangements)
enables us to meet our growth aspirations, helps support our returns and gives us better control over our cost
base. :

e - It is important to have high standards of health and safety on our sites to create the appropriate working
environment to deliver a good quality product and protect the well-being of our employees and sub contractors
and that of visitors to our sntes

e Ensuring we build the type of homes our customers want to buy and matchmg our build rates to our sales rates
reduces the amount of capital tied up in work in progress and unsold finished properties, which could have an
adverse impact on our ROCE

How this links to Corporate Responsibility
e The health and safety of everyone who works on and visits our sites is paramount.
e  Reducing waste on site delivers cost savings for the business and reduces the amount of waste sent to landfill.

Building strong long-term relationships with sub-contractors and suppliers- and manufacturers of materials
generates benefits for us, those we do business with and the communities in which we operate.

Adhering to the commitments we have signed up to in the Prompt Payment Code is consistent with our aim to
be regarded as a responsrble and reliable national housebuilder.

The risks we mitigate

e  Shortage of appropriately skilled construction people and sub-contractors. During the year this risk has
increased in certain areas of the country. :

»  Shortage of building materials at competitive prices. During the year there has been no change in this risk:

e  There are significant health and safety risks mherent in the construction process. Durmg the year there has
been no change in this risk.
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Strategic report (continued)

Business model (continued)

How we performed in 2015/16 -

We have trialled our standard house types and standard construction specification and will use the experience
gained from those trials to begin a phased roll out in England. This standardlsatlon will help us to control bulld
cost and the quality of our homes. :

We have reviewed all of our standard contracts and tramed our key employees in their use to help reduce the
risk of cost escalauon and claims during constructlon

"Our construction programmes have beneﬁted from certamty of materials supply through good forward

planning and. supplier relationships. A good example of this is that the shortages of blockwork across the
industry in 2016 was well managed by our team and did not hold up our production schedule.

The Board continues to pay close attention to our health and safety performance at each Board meeting by
monitoring performance against pre-determined targets and objectives. The Board is. regularly updated by
external specnahsts on both its own and the Company’s health and safety obligations.

Our sites were regularly inspected by both internal and external specialists to ensure that high srandards of
health and safety compliance were maintained.

We have recruited an additional health and safety manager dedicated to our more complex London schemes.

Our plans for 2016/17

A phased roll out of the new standard house type range across part of England.

We will review and refresh our supplier arrangements to ensure we continue to achieve certainfy of supply ata
good price whilst increasing our controls on quality and compliance.

We will target improvements during the year through improved design, construction processes and training.

The Board will continue to monitor the health and safety performance against targets at each Board meeting.

- Our sites will continue to be regularly inspected by both internal and external specialists to ensure high.

standards of health and safety compliance and performance are maintained

We will have focussed site briefings this year on how to reduce slips, trlps and falls to reduce the number of
RlDDOR lost time accidents.

KPIs

.The health and safety of our employees, sub-contractors and visitors on site is paramount. We therefore include.a

heaith and safety target as part of the executive directors’ potential bonus payment. Improvements in health and
safety performance are indicated by a lower NHBC incident rate, and by a reduction in the number of RIDDOR lost
time accidents. Unfortunately the number of RIDDOR lost time accidents rose by 3%. .

The effectiveness of health and safety on our sites, as measured using the NHBC incident rate — 0 766 (2015 -

© 0.936).

Our construction-based employees have been awarded 43 Prlde in‘the Job Awards (2015 —33) and 5 NHBC
Health and-Safety Awards (2015 - 9).

P
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'Strategic report (continued)

- Business model (continued)

¢ Number of RIDDOR lost time accidents per 100,000 site operatives — 445.19 (2015 —430.75).

Delivering an excellent and customer experience

Descrlptlon

. We aspire to sell homes that are desirable and affordable for our customers. The satisfaction of our customers
is paramount and ultimately this will determine the success or otherwise of our business.

e Weaim to deliver an excellent sales experience to our customers, both before and after occupatlon of their
homes, building upon our reputation as a quality national housebuildeér.

- e  We aim to increase the number of homes sold through continued mvestment in approprlate land and our
construction teams. :

What we rely on

. Sales and customer care teams who are well trained, have the right attitude and the resources available to them
to deliver excellent service to our customers both before and after occupation of their home.

e Site Managers who are responsible for, and .take genuine pride in, the qualrty of each finished home that we
build.

How this links to strategy

-« It is important to have sufﬁcrent demand-and mortgage finance avallablllty for the homes we construct to
ensure the Company is able to meet its volume growth targets

e  Ensuring that our customers have an excellent experience is something we aim to deliver at all times. It also
helps to perpetuate a positive reputation for the Company and assists in generatlng further sales through
personal recommendatron and brand awareness. We monitor customer satisfaction using feedback from our
customers. :

How this links to Corporate Responsibility

e We continue to improve the energy efficiency of the homes we build by building homes which are on average
more energy efficient than that required by building regulations :

e  Customer handover folders now contain information on sustamable travel, local recyclmg centres and energy
efficiency advice.

e  For every completed customer survey we make a donation to our' natronal charity partner. -
The risks we mitigate

e  Mortgage availability.

¢ Interest rate changes.

e  Government housing policy.

During the year there were no material changes in these risks although interest rates have fallen which has improved
mortgage affordability. . .

e  Market uncertainty following the EU Referendum. This is a new risk identified during the year. -
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Strategic report (continued)

Business model (continued)

How we performed in 2015/16

e  Our expandmg national network of divisions, together with the development of attractive, affordable homes -
ranging from apartments to traditional five bedroom homes has he]ped increase the number of homes sold and
the average selling price.

48% of our apartments sold in the year were in the London boroughs.

e We have continued to train customer-facing employees throughout the year, and are pleased to report that our
independent net customer satisfaction score has increased slightly to 85.7%. :

o We successfully opened one new division during the financial year which will help to augment our sales
performance.

Our plans for 2016/17

‘e We will continue to sell a wide range of high quallty homes to suit a variety of budgets in Iocatlons sought
“after by our customers. .

We will continuously revisit and refresh our training for all customer-facing employees.

e We aim to increase the number of new homes we bring to the market and thereby increase the number of .
homes we sell. . .

e We will seek to regain our HBF/NHBC 5 star housebuilder status.

e We have opened another operating division, based in County Durham, on 1 August 2016.

e  We will increase the charitable donation made for every completed customer survey from £5 to £10.
KPIs ‘ '

. We have chosen the following KPIs as they demonstrate progress made by the Company in delivering its strategy of
volume growth. We believe that customer satisfaction plays a very important part in achieving this volume growth
and part of the bonus available to the executive directors is based upon improvements made in customer service.

All of these KPIs have improved during the year, apart from our 4 star housebuilder status, which has remained the
same.

e Assessment of customer care satisfaction by reference to the average of six customer.care related questions —
. 85.7% (2015 — 83.8%).

e The number of legal completlons has risen to 8,721 (2015 - 7 752)

e * Our forward order book at 31 July 2016 has increased during the year to £1,117.1 million (2015 -
£1,087.9 mllllon)

e The reservatron rate has increased to 169 per week (2015 — 153)

. - HBF/NHBC 4 star housebuilder status (2015 — 4 star housebuilder status).

11
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Strategic report (continued)

Business model (continued)

Investing in our people
Description

" Qur people are key to the success of our business, and we aim to provide them with a rewarding and fulfilling
career. .

What we rely on

e  Our skilled, professional and dedicated employees and sub- contractors are provnded w1th the right level of
training, support and resources.

How this links:to strategy

e. Our employe'es are essential to the del'ivery of our'strategy through the value they add at all stages of our
operations.

How this links to Corporate Responsibility

. Further 1mprovements in training and development

e Increase in the minimum employer matched penswn contrlbutlon rate to 4% of salary

The risks we mitigate . ’ '

_ e The inability to attract and retam appropriate people. Durmg the year this risk has not changed
How we performed in 2015/16 o

e “We have increased the number of graduates and apprentices we recruit and train by 14%.

e Work continues on developing our Human Resources strategy, which is now led by a newly appointed Human
Resources Director. .

e  We continue to increase the level of training provnded to employees involved with sales; customer care and
health and safety. - :

The percentage of our Site Managers and Assistant Site Managers who have now achieved NVQ Level 6 .
qualifications or above has increased by 140bps. .

e ' We increased the minimum employer and employee pensron contnbutlons for all employees from 3% to 4% of
basic pay.

e ' .InJune we launched the Bellway Leammg Hub, an online learning platform which provides e-learning courses
and online resources for new and existing employees

Our plans for 2016/17

e  Develop a structured induction programme. .

e  Create a suite of mandatory and developmental e-learning courses.

e  Develop and implement management development training, tools and guidance.

e Review and develop a succession planning framework.
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- Strategic report (continued)

Business model (continued)

e  Develop a structured apprenticeship and graduate training programme and ‘increase the number of graduates
and apprentices we recruit and develop.

KPIs -

We use the following KPIs as indicators of how successful we have been during the year in managing our people.
- Employee turnover and the proportion of our people who have worked with us for more than ten years indicate how
good we are at retention. During the year employee turnover increased-as a result of a general skills shortage in our
sector, however the proportion of our people who have ten or more years® service also increased. The other KPIs
demonstrate our progress agamst training for our existing workforce and our success in recruiting new entrants to
the industry.

. Employees who have worked fo’r the Company for ten years or more —21% (2015 — 18%).
e  Graduates and apprentices — 83 (2015 — 73). ‘
‘e - Site Managers and Assrstant Srte Managers with NVQ Level 6 or.above — 48% (2015 — 34%).
e Customer care training during the year — 5,800 hours (2015 — 3,586 hours).
e  Employee turnover — 23.4% (2015 ~ 19.1%).

Operating review
Tradlng performance

Demand for new homes has remained robust throughout the year, with the Company takmg an average -of 169
reservations per week (2015 — 153), an increase of over 10% compared to last year. Interest in new sites has been-
encouraging, with overall visitor numbers ahead of the prior financial year, whilst monthly ‘hits’ to the Bellway
website continued to grow. Customer conﬁdence is robust and the cance]latlon rate for the yedr remained low at

only 11% (2015 - 11%). ‘ :

More recently, the result of the EU Referendum on 24 June has cast some uncertainty with regards to the wider
economic outlook. Reassuringly, reservations net of cancellations, since that date until 31 July, were 13% ahead of
the same period in'the pnor year. The Bank of England’s monetary policy response should help to at least maintain
the favourable conditions in which customers are able to purchase a new home. '

Throughout the year, the pricing environment has remained posmve and sales prices achieved on reservations have
generally been at, or slightly ahead of the assumptions made when sites were mmally acquired. Incentives have -
been utilised sparmgly with their use low by historical standards. One of the main selling incentives continues to be -
part- exchange on selected developments, with this inducement being used in 7% (2015 — 8%) of reservations.

Help to Buy continues to be an important government stimulus and has been used in 32% (2015 - 27%) of
reservations. In England, the extension of Help to Buy until 2021 has created additional visibility with regards to
the ongoing availability of affordable, higher loan to value mortgage finance. “This further supports long-term
demand aiding the Company when makmg investment decrsnons o ‘

In London, the increase in the maximum Help to Buy equity loan percentage to 40% on 1 February has helped
.widen access to mortgage finance for potential purchasers, further underpinning the investment in our London
business. Since the higher equity share loan was introduced, the use of Help to Buy in the Capital has rlsen to 39%
of reservations. :

13
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Strategic report (continued)

‘Operating review (continued)

Trading performance (continued)

The Company opened a new South Midlands division, located in Coventry in February 2016 and latterly it has
opened a further division, located in County Durham, on 1 August 2016. Bellway now has nineteen operating
divisions, six of which have been opened.in the three years since 1 August 2013. The more established new
divisions are all performing well and the newest divisions in Coventry and County Durham should make a positive
contribution to completions and prof tability in the year ahead

The table below shows the number and average selling price of homes completed in the year, analysed
geographically, between private and social homes:-

Homes sold (number) ' : Average selling price (£000)

Private Social Total Private Social Total

2016 2015 [ 2016 2015 | 2016 | 2015 20161 2015 | 2016} 2015 | 2016 | 2015
North 3,651 1 3,070 536 626 | 4,187 | 3,696 2206 212.0 | -92.2| 87.0 | 204.2'| 190.8

South -3,694 | 3,108 840 | 948 | 4,534 | 4,056 335.61 2909 | 131.3 | 132.5 | 297.7 | 253.8

Company v7,345 6,178 | 1,376 | 1,574 | 8,721 | 7,752 278.4 | 251.7 | 116.1} 114.4 | 252.8 | 223.8

The total number of completions has risen by almost 13% to 8,721 (2015 — 7,752) and has been positively
influenced by the number of private homes sold rising by 18.9% to 7,345 (2015 — 6,178), representing 84% (2015 —
80%) of the total.

Our northern divisions have performed well, benefiting from significant investment in high quality land and work in
progress over recent years. This, together with strong market conditions, has contributed to notable volume growth
in divisions such as West and East Midlands, which completed the sale of 780 and 744 homes respectively. .Our
new Manchester division, opened in August 2013, has also performed well, delivering 360 new homes, an increase
of 100 compared to the prior year. In the south, the market is also strong, with divisions such as Thames Gateway,
North London and Essex all delivering in excess of 700 homes, resulting in record profits in each of these regions.

The average selling price has risen by 13.0% to £252,793 (2015 — £223,809), with the improvement driven by a
higher proportion of private homes sold, continued investment in higher value locations, together with a modest
benefit arising from house price inflation.  This focus on higher value areas has aided divisions such as West
Midlands, Essex and Northern Home Counties to deliver increases in their average selling price in excess of 14%.

In London, demand remains strongest in more affordable locations, which is principally where Bellway continues to
focus its activities. -Our average selling price in London has risen by 30.7% to £377,118 (2015 — £288,514), firmly
within the scope of Help to Buy. The rise in average selling price has been influenced by an unusually low
proportion of social completions, which represented only 4% (2015 — 14%) of homes sold in the Capital. In
addition, there has been a positive effect arising from the completion of a number of higher value apartments, at
sites in locations such as Greenwich, Brentford and Park Royal. Overall, London accounted for 14% (2015 - 19%)
of the Company’s completions and 21% (2015 - 24%) of housing revenue. :
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Operating review (continued)

Construction and materlal costs

There is still some upward pressure with regards to’ labour costs, particularly in the South East, where the
availability of certain trades, predominantly ground workers, brick layers and scaffolders is most restricted. These
pressures are, however, manageable in the context of the growth of the Company.

Material cost increases have largely abated and whilst there still remains occasional availability issues, longer lead
in times have been factored into build programmes and strong relationships with suppllers are helping to ensure that
construction tlmetables are being met. . .

The Company does not directly import any materials from overseas and desplte the volatility following the outcome
of the EU Referendum, the overall cost of any adverse currency fluctuations is expected to be minimal when
considered as part of the overall cost of constructing a new home. . .

Planning and improving the land bank

. The land market continues to produce attractive opportunities at good rates of return. The planning environment is
supportive and is generally favourable towards land buying, with the number of new planning permissions granted
continuing to exceed national housing output. There are however, a large number of local authorities that still do
not have adopted local plans. in place. In addition, the conclusion of planning obligation agreements and the
" satisfaction of pre-commencement conditions, in the context of a complex planning environment, can often add cost "
and cause delay to site starts. We await the detail of the amended Housing and Planning Act and in particular the
obligations surrounding the provision of Starter Homes, but welcome the government’s initiative to assxst first-time
. buyers to get onto the housing ladder. .

Against this backdrop, the Company has contmued its controlled investment in land, ldentlfymg and acquiring sites
that meet or exceed its minimum hurdle rates in respect of both gross margin and return on capital employed.
Accordingly, the Company has expended a record £670 million on land and land creditors (2015 — £620 million)
and has contracted to acquire 9,555 plots (2015 — 9,128 plots) across 88 sites (2015 — 88 sites), thereby ensuring it is
well positioned to deliver further volume growth in the years ahead. The Company has a disciplined approach-
towards land buying, assigning capital to opportunities in areas where demand is strongest and where returns are
most attractive. This has led to a geographically balanced approach to investment, with 46% of plots contracted in
the north (2015 - 49%) and 54% in the south (2015 — 51%). :

The table below analyses the Company’s land holdings at 31 July:

2016 2015

- Owned and controlled plots 34,979 36,211
Comprising: : . .

DPP: plots with implementable detailed planning permission 24,879 21,411

- Pipeline: plots pénding an implementable DPP ' 10,100 . 14,800

Strategic plots with a positive planning status . , 6,300 6,000
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Operating review (continued)

Planning and improving the land bank (corltinued)

The number of plots with an implementable detailed planning permission (‘DPP’) has risen by .16% to 24,879 (2015
—21,411), representing 2.9 years’ supply (2015 — 2.8 years) at current rates of output. The Company-has all of its
land in place with the benefit of DPP in order to meet this current year’s planned growth target. The increase in the
number of plots with DPP reflects the success of our land and planning teams, both in acquiring new land and also
in obtaining a planning permission on already owned or contracted land, with some 7,265 plots havmg been
converted from the Company s land ‘pipeline’ during the year. One such site on which the Company obtained DPP
was Copenhagen Place in Limehouse, London, a small brownfield redevelopment opportunity acquired for £5
million in summer 2015. This site was bought without any planning status, but our experience and strong
knowledge of this local area helped secure DPP for 45 homes.

The number of plots wrthm the land pipeline has reduced to 10,100 (2015 — 14,800), with these plots defined as
those which either benefit' from an outline planning permission, or are assessed as likely to obtain the benefit of a
DPP within the next three years. The reduction in the number of pipeline plots is in part attributable to our success
in obtaining DPP on the 7,265 plots converted from the pipeline land bank during the year. In addition, the
Company disposed of its interest in Barking Riverside Limited, its joint venture company with the Greater London
Authority, to London & Quadrant New Homes Limited. As part of the disposal, Beliway entered into a new pre-
emption agreement, which based on the existing outline planning permission, entitles it to purchase around 2,600
development plots on attractive commercial terms. This represents some 2,100 fewer plots compared to the .
previous éntitlement, which would have been available for purchase over the estimated remaining twenty year life of
the scheme, provided Bellway made a significant, long term capital contribution to the onsite infrastructure costs.
The reduction in plots has been shown as a decrease in the pipeline land bank, resulting in a more concentrated
residual land pipeline, accessible over a shorter time period and requiring less initial capital outlay.

The Company still continues to focus on acquiririg land through its pipeline, often acquiring sites conditionally with
a deposit. This approach to land buying helps secure a medium-term land supply, without consuming excessive
capital. Contracting land in this manner typically results in the acquisition of higher return, brownfield
opportunities, where the planning prognosis is often positive and is supported by the govemment s presumption in
favour of brownfield development. :

In total, the Company’s owned and controlled land bank, comprising land with DPP -and land in the pipeline,.
consists of 34,979 plots (2015 — 36,211 plots), with brownfield land representing approximately 61% of these plots
(2015 -.66%).’ '

In addition to the owned and controlled land bank, the Company recognises that greenfield strategic land can be a
valuable source of supply, more so as Bellway continues to expand and therefore requires a wide variety of land
'sources in order to meet the growth demands of the future. The Company has therefore appointed three regional
strategic land directors whose remit is to identify and acquire longer term land, further complementing the
approximate 6% of additions in the year to the top tier of the land bank that have historically orlgmated from
strategic land assets.

Strategic land holdings have lncreased to 6,300 plots (2015 — 6,000 plots),: wrth those reported representmg only
those plots that have a positive planning prognosis, being either identified for resrdentlal development in an
emerging local plan or subject to a current planning application.

Developmg our people

The average number of people employed has risen by 9% to 2,366 (2015 — 2,162), which is in addition to those
engaged indirectly, both through the provision of subcontractor labour and in associated supply chain mdustrres
» -demonstratmg the positive economic contnbutlon arising from the increase in volume output
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Operating review (continued)

Developing our people (continued)

Identifying, recruiting and retaining experienced, high calibre individuals remains the greatest constraint to long
" term growth for the wider industry. Upward pressure with regards-to salary costs has remained a feature ovér the
 past year, particularly in London and the South East, where the demand for skilled individuals is most pronounced.

The Company recognises its responsibility to contribute to reducing the industry wide skills shortage and also the
importance of its people in delivering this outstanding set of results. Accordingly, Bellway has increased the
number of apprentices and graduates within the business by 14% to 83 people (2015 — 73) and has also continued to
develop and invest in our site managers and assistant site managers, with 48% (2015 — 34%) of these individuals
now having achieved NVQ Level 6 or higher. Ongoing training is also important across the wider organisation,

ensuring that Bellway continues to meet high standards in all aspects of its business activities. This is reﬂected by
the number of tralmng hours undertaken by our employees mcreasmg by 36% to 12,514 (2015 — 9,234).

Bellway has appomted a new Human Resources Drrector with the remit to further develop the Company’s people
strategy, initially focusing on attraction, development and retention of talent across the business.

Bellway4Good

Whilst growing the business, we wish to do so in a sustainable and ethical manner and accordingly, Bellway has for

the second year in succession continued to set and monitor performance against a number of objectives under the

_ banner of Bellway4Good, its corporate responsibility functlon This focuses on the principal areas of environment,
construction, society and economy. :

Key achievements during the year include increasing the percentage of construction compounds fitted with energy -
saving devicés to 84% (2015 — 52%), exceeding the minimum energy efficiency requirement on our new homes by
6%, as measured by the dwelling emission rate, improving waste diversion rates to 95.9% (2015 — 92.9%) and
providing customer handover folders to home purchasers contammg lnformatlon on sustamable travel, local
recycling centres and energy efﬁcrency advice.

Bellway has also taken a proactive approach to the way in which it manages charitable engagement, undertakmg a
range of initiatives to support a number of different charities and in particular, its two chosen national charity
partners, being British Heart Foundation and Construction Youth Trust. We are pleased to report that our total
charitable donations, made through a combination of employee fundraising, matched funding and direct donations
amounted to £284,704 (2015 - £183,540), of which £74,704 (2015 £37 530) was donated by employees.

A focus on customer care

Ensuring that our customers enjoy a positive experience whén purchasing a new home is a key priority for the
Company. We offer a wide range of product to suit individuals and families, with varying budgets at different
. stages of their lives. - :

We strive to ensure that our product isbuilttoa hrgh standard, thus helpmg to reduce the expense of costly remedlal
work and minimise subsequent disruption for our customers. We continue to focus on build quality and the efforts
of our Site Managers have been rewarded, with 43 of them receiving NHBC Pride in the Job Awards (2015 — 33),
_ the highest the Company has ever achieved and an increase of 30% compared to.last year.
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Operating review (continued)

A focus on customer care (continued)

Customer feedback is important to us so that we can identify areas for improvement and build these into our future
processes. We invite all of our customers to participate in a survey, obtaining feedback across a number of key
areas. In order to obtain a true representation of where we can improve, we focus on six key questions, covering
build quality, standard of finish and home condition, amongst other topics. We use the results of these surveys to
calculate an average overall customer care score which has risen by 190bps to 85.7% (2015 — 83.8%)).

In order to further improve our customer care processes, we have also mvested in a Company Customer Care
Manager, supplementing our existing divisional resources. :

Building new homes safely

Ensuring the health and safety of all of our site operatives is of utmost importance and we therefore undertake
regular onsite training for all of our site managers. In addition to a focus on reducing accident rates, during the year
we have placed added emphasis on dust suppression in an attempt to mitigate the risk to those individuals working
on our sites.

We conduct regular health and safety inspections on all our sites using a combination of both in-house health and
safety managers and externally appointed consultants. During these inspections, each site is appraised against a
number of criteria and appropriate action is taken where improvements can be made. As a result of this approach,
our NHBC health and safety incident rate has fallen again to 0.766 (2015 — 0.936), with a low score representing a
lower incidence of health and safety contraventions. This low score compares favourably when benchmarking
against those companies that adopt a similar scoring metric.

In addition, we are pleased to report that five of the Company’s Site Managers have been given NHBC Health and
Safety Awards (2015 — nine), with two of these then going on to secure highly commended awards.

Current trading and outlook

Whilst delivering significant volume growth, the Company ended the year with an increased order book comprising
4,644 homes (2015 — 4,568 homes), with a value of £1,117.1 million (2015 — £1,087.9 million). In the nine weeks
since 1 August, the Company has taken an average of 162 reservations per week (2015 — 149), an increase of 9%
compared to the same time last year. As a result, as at 2 October the order book has grown further to 4,701 homes
(4 October 2015 ~ 4,432 homes), with a value of £1,159.3 million (4 October 2015 — £1,032.9 million). Sales prices
on reservations taken during this period have continued to be in line with or slightly ahead of expectations.

From its structure of 19 operating divisions, the Company has the capacity to deliver around 11,000 new homes per
annum and is well placed to increase this capacity, through the opening of further new divisions, should market
conditions remain robust. Given this capacity, the strong order book and encouraging start to trading, the Company
should be able to deliver further, but more moderate growth in volume in the current financial year and beyond. The
extent of volume growth this year will depend on whether customer confidence is maintained and strong sales rates
continue throughout the autumn and subsequent spring selling seasons.

The strength of the Company’s balance sheet and divisional structure mean that Bellway is well placed to deliver its
strategy of further volume growth over the longer term and this, together with a disciplined focus on ROCE, should
result in additional value creation for shareholders.

R PSR A WSS

Ted Ayres
Director 17 October 2016
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Financial review

Operating performance

Ongoing delivery of the growth strategy with another year of significant volume growth, together with further
improvement in the average selling price, has resulted in housing revenue growing substantially, by 27.1% to a
record £2,204.6 million (2015 — £1,735.0 million). . .

This, together with other revenue of £36.0 million (2015 — £29.6 mllllon) pnncnpally comprising receipts from the
usual disposal of the. Company’s ground rent portfolio, resulted in total revenue for the Company increasing by
27.0% to £2,240.6 million (2015 — £1,764.6 mllhon)

The gross margin has risen to a record 25.7% (2015 - 24 2%")) with the aequisnion of good quality fand
contrlbutmg to this improvement. The positive effects of house price inflation, net of inevitable industrywide build
cost increases over recent years, has also contributed to this improvement. .

Increased output has helped improve the absorption of the administrative overhead base, which has fallen slightly to
3.8% of revenue (2015 — 4.0%), a reflection of a continued emphasis towards cost control. This comparatively low -
ratio has been achieved notwithstanding the investment in resource in order to deliver ongoing growth. In addition,
there has been some upward pressure on salary costs, reflecting the continuing demand for good quality individuals.
The total administrative overhead has risen to £83. 5 million (2015 ~ £69 4 million).

A strong trading performance has resulted in the operating margin rising by 170bps to 21.9% (2015 — 20.2%'), a
record for the Company. This has contributed to the 37.6% rise in operatmg profit which grew to £491 4 million
(2015 — £357.1 million").

Barking Riverside " .
In addition to the 'strong operating. performance, the Company recogmsed an exceptional profit of £7.0 million,
arising on disposal of its interest in Barking Riverside lelted (note 7).

The disposal of Barkmg Riverside will result in a net cash inflow with a fanr value of £43.5 million and will also
relieve the Company from its substantial” funding obligations with regards to the ongoing remediation and
infrastructure requirements of this long-term, capital intensive site. The disposal provides the Company w1th the
opportunity to reallocate underperforming capital into hlgher return land opportunities.

Net finance expense

The net finance expense has fallen slightly to £11.0 million (2015 — £12.7 million)-and is mainly made up of
imputed interest arising on land acquired on deferred terms, which has risen to £7.6 million (2015 — £6.6 million).
The remaining net interest expense principally relates to bank interest, comprising interest on drawn monies,
commitment fees and refinancing costs on the Company’s £500 million banking facnlmes This has fallen to £3.4.
million (2015 — £6.1 million) reflecting the timing of tranche renewals. : :

Profitability

Profit before taxatlon has risen by 38 8% to £487.5 million (2015 — £351.3 mllllon) and the Company 1ncurred a
corporation tax charge of £94.8 million (2015 £70.5 million), reflecting an effective tax rate of 19.4% (2015 —
20.1%). The Company’s effective tax rate is below the standard rate of corporation tax of 20% (2015 — 20.7%),
primarily as a result of the non-taxable disposal of Barking Riverside Limited, together w1th the benefit of an
enhanced tax deduction for remediating previously developed, brownfield land.

Overall, profit after taxation has risen by 39.9% to £392.7 million (2015 — £280.8 million).
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Financial review (continued)
Cash flow and debt

Bellway remains highly cash generative and produced cash from operations of £307.5 million (2015 — £24.8
million) after increasing the amount of capital invested in land and work in progress, in order to facilitate the future
growth of the business.

After expending £82.2 million on tax, paying a dividend of £170.0 million and taking into consideration other minor
cash inflows of £8.2 million, the Company ended the year with net bank debt of £19.5 million (2015 — £83.0
million), reflecting gearing of 1.6% (2015 — 8.1%).

Land cre’difors, which are considered to be a source .of longer term debt ﬁnancé, stood ét £304.2 million (2015 -
£199.8 million) and continue to be used only when it is cost effective to do so. Including land creditors, total debt
stood at £323.7 million (2015 — £282.8 million), representing adjusted gearing of 25.9% (2015 — 27.4%).

Balance sheet

Investment in land has risen by 24.4% to £1,625.1 million (2015 — £1,306.7 million) as the Company continues to
invest in order to secure future growth. The amount invested in land with a detailed planning permission has
increased by 31.9% to £1,373.1 million (2015 — £1,040.9 million) and is represented by 24,879 plots (2015 - 21,411
plots), reflecting the success of our land teams in acquiring or progressing land through the planning system.

Work in progress has risen to £835.9 million (2015 — £763.5 million) as significant investment has been made in
order to meet the ongoing demand for new homes. Bellway now has 9,621 plots under construction (2015 — 7,923
plots), including developments in the early stages of production on a number of London schemes, where
completions are expected in later years.

There is a modest pension scheme deficit of £8.0 million (2015 — £7.5 million), which comprises assets of £51.9
million (2015 — £47.3 million), less liabilities of £59.9 million (2015 — £54.8 million). The increase in the deficit is
principally attributable to the reduction in corporate bond rates.

Delivering enhanced shareholder returns

The strong trading performarnce, together with a focus on balance sheet efficiency, has resulted in return on capital
employed rising by 460bps to 28.1% (2015 — 23.5%V). Notwithstanding a conservative approach to debt and a
lowly geared balance sheet, post-tax return on equity has risen by 190bps to 33.7% (2015 — 31.8%).

Keith Adey
Director 17 October 2016

Y

Note:

(- Before exceptional item (see note 7).

20



Bellway Homes Limited

Strateglc Report, Directors’ Report and financial statements .
31 July 2016 -

Strategic report (continued)

Risk Management

We have a long-established and effective framework for managing risk. It is the responsibility of management
across the Company to implement the Board’s policies on risk and internal control. -

Our risk management objectives are to:

o assess fisks-against an agreed appetite for risk, which is regularly reviewed;

e ensure risk management roles and responsibilities are deﬁned'and nndefstood;

e improve the balance of risk and return through deve]oping and maintaining a proactive, risk aware culture;

e ensure there is a consnstent approach for the identification, assessment control, momtormg, fo]low up and -
reporting of risks; -

¢ develop and implement action plans so as to ensure that rlsks are w1th1n our agreed risk appetite and that
’ lmprovements are made to our control environment;

e ensure the -approach to risk management meets the needs of the busmess, senior management and all key
stakeholders. .

Risk management roles and responsibilities -

Risk management is the respbnsibility of every employee. In undertaking their'individual roles and responsibilities,
employees are assisting in managing risk. Specnf ¢ to our detailed risk management policy and processes, roles and
responsnbllltles are:

Risk management process

_—’, -

: P >
Identify Evaluate ) Treat . Actions Report
All . Severity To bring Mitigate ..~ Monitor
business C of : within risk risks - and report
- areas : risks appetite : (where . progress

needed)

Management. maintains a. comprehensive risk register of all identified risks, including operational,. financial,
compliance and strategic risks. The risk managément processes have been set up in such a way so as to ensure all
aspects of the business are considered, from strategy through to business execution. Specifically, specialist areas are
.also incorporated into the risk processes, for example, Corporate Responsibility and joint ventures.
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‘Risk Management (continued)

The risk register is reviewed on a regular basis as part of the management reporting process resulting in the regular
assessment of each risk, its severnty and any required mitigating actions. The severlty of risks is determined based on
.a defined scoring system assessing risk impact and likelihood.

Derived from the comprehensive risk register is a summary of principal risks specifically reserved for review by the .
Board. This is mainly, but not exclusively comprised of risks, after mitigation, which score above a certain
threshold. This summary is reviewed by the Board throughout the year, with the. Board systematically considering
the risks taking into account any changes which may have occurred. Once a year, via the Audit Commlttee the
Board determines whether the system of risk management is operating effectively.

The Company has identified, evaluated and put in place measures to mitigate the prmcnpal risks faced by the

business, as shown below.

g';'::;?ion Relevance to Strategy KPIs Mitigation Change in Year
LAND- ,

Inability t : '

sz?talk)lltey ;)ansdourc;, Failure tobuy land [ =  EPS. We prepare <—>
appropriate  gross at the right margin | _ . ROCE. thorough pre- | The land market

margins and
ROCE.

would havea

- detrimental effect

on future returns.

Insufficient land
would affect our
volume growth
targets.

»  Land bank with
DPP.

®*  Gross margin.

purchase due

diligence and

pre-purchase
viabilities on all
of our proposed
land purchases.

" These are kept

under regular
review to ensure
capital is -
invested
appropriately.

Authorisation of
allland
purchases
(regardless of -
value) in
accordance with
Company
procedures at
Head Office.

remained
competitive during
the year. We have
strengthened our
land teams, both
through new

.appointments and
new regional roles.
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Risk and

Description -Relevance to Strategy | KPIs Mitigation Change in year

PLANNING

Delays and Failure to obtain = EPS. *  Centralisedand | ¢— 3

complexity in the planning within . -+ divisional . .

planning process. appropriate, pre- ROCE. planning D etShP Jtelcorqp lexity
planned timescales | «  Number of plots _ specialists In the planning

would have a -
detrimental impact
on our growth
prospects and have
an adverse effect
onreturns.

acquired directly in
land bank: with an
implementable
-DPP.

*  Number of plots -
converted from
medium-term
pipeline to land
with DPP.

= Number of plots in
our pipeline land
bank.

=  Number of plots
identified in our
. strategic land bank
with a positive
planning status.

provide advice
and support to
the. divisions to
assist with
securing
planning -
permissions.

*  Management of
" immediate,
medium-term
and strategic
land to maintain
an appropriate
. balance of land

in terms of
quantity and
location.

process, * this risk

has continued to be

well managed in the
year, the number of
planning

permissions granted

increasing.

CONSTRUCTION
.RESOURCES

Shortage of
appropriately
skilled sub-
contractors and
shortages of
building materials
at competitive
prices

Failure to secure
required resources
causes delays in
construction,
impacting the
ability to deliver

" volume growth

targets.

Pricing pressure
would impact
returns.

= EPS.

L Embloyee
turnover.

= Number of homes
sold.

=  Systems are in
place to select,
appoint, monitor
and manage sub-
contractors.

= Competitive
rates are in place
for sub- .
contractors.

*  Company
purchasing
arrangements are
in place.

*  Continued
" review of
forward planning
and key supplier
performance.

_®*  We build long-

term
relationships
with sub-
contractors and
always aim to,
treat them fairly
and pay
promptly.

]

This risk has

increased slightly
during the year due
to increased
competitive
pressure in the sub-
contractor labour
market and as a
result of
uncertainties
following the EU

| Referendum.
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The impact of our
operations on the
environment must
be managed in a
responsible and

sustainable manner.

= . Ineffective
management of
environmental
matters would lead
to financial loss,.

" reputational
damage and a
potential inability
to build and sell
homes..

= - Percentage of
" compounds with
energy saving
devices.

=  Energy efficiency
-of our homes.

=  Waste diversion
rates.

= We have arange

of procedures in
place to address
issues around
ecology,
biodiversity,
resource use,
waste

.management and
sustainable
sourcing, with
the objective that
a development
should create an

- attractive and
sustainable
environment.

gless':::?ion Relevance to Strategy - [ KPIs Mitigation Change in year
HEALTH AND )
SAFETY : =  In addition to the = Number of »  The Board +——>
There are moral obligation RIDDOR seven- considers health :
significant health and the day lost time and safety issues There have b@en'no
and safety risks requirement to act accidents. at every meeting. changes to this risk
inherent in the. in a responsible : B during the year.
construction manner, injuries to * NHBChealthand | = Regular visits to
process. any individual safety benchmark. sites by senior
_while atone ofour | «  NHBC Health and management
business locations” | ~ Safety Awards. (independent of
could delay our divisions)
construction and and external’
result in criminal ,cons.ultantsAto
prosecution, civil monitor health .
litigation and - and safety
reputational ;?;g:{f::nif;d.
damage. " against the health
and safety
policies and
procedures.
ENVIRONMENT

There have been no
changes to this risk
during the year.
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Risk and’

Description Relevance to Strategy KPIs Mitigation Chaﬁge in year .
SALES .

There are a number | ®*  The ultimate = . EPS. =  Ongoing

of external factors impact of these «  ROCE : monitoring of .

that could affect
our ability to
generate sales:

= Market
uncertainty
following the
"EU
Referendum.

. Access to
credit
_facilities.

=  Mortgage
availability.

s Interest rate
changes.

= Government
" housing
policy.

external factors
would be on the
ability to sell
homes and
apartments and on
returns.

=  Number of homes
sold.

= Forward order
book.

=  Reservations rate.

= Customer care
satisfaction. .

key business
metrics such as
reservation rates,
cancellation rates
and customer
care scores.

= - Action plans
developed from
monitoring of
metrics.

= Active
management of
construction
rates to match
with sales rates.

*  Product range
and pricing
strategy
determined based
on regional
market
conditions.

=  Use of sales
incentives, such
as part exchange,
to encourage the
selling process.

=  Useof
government-
backed schemes
to encourage
home ownership.

This risk has
increased slightly
during the year due
to uncertainties
following the EU
Referendum but
partially offset by
reducing interest
rates.
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Risk and

Mitigation

Failure to have
suitable systems in
place and
appropriate back
up, contingency
plans and security
policies.

of our systems

“would affect
operational
efficiency,’
profitability and
our control

environment, .

systems are in -
operation which
are centrally
controlled with
an outsourced
support function
in place:

=  Continued
investment in
systems.

=  Regular review
and testing of our
security
measures,
contingency
- plans and IT
security policies.

Description "| Relevance to Strategy | KPIs Change in year
[ HUMAN
ESOURCE! . . .
RESOURCES =  Failure to attract = EPS. = - . We have +—>
Inability to attract and retain people : appointed a new ..
and retain with appropriate | ©  Employee Human T: . “S:: Remot
-appropriate people. skills will.affect turnover. Resources change \ ulrul;g the
: our ability to = People who have Director who y ea'kaSL ¢ labour -
perform and ) worked for the will oversee the mar ?t das
deliver our volume Company for ten * development of remamtg i
growth target. years or more. our people competitive.
: : ‘ strategy.
*  Graduates and N
apprentices. . Competitive
salary and
~  Number of homes benefits
sold. packages which
are regularly
reviewed.
*  Succession-plans
in place and key
person
dependencies
identified.
=  Graduate and
apprentice
training
programmes in
place.
INFORMATION -
TECHNOLOGY : .
*  Poor performance = EPS. =  Company-wide <+—>

There have been no
changes to this risk
during the year.
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Risk Management (contznued)

Il;lessl:::zon Relevance to Strategy | KPIs Mitigation Change in ygar
LEGAL AND . <+—>
Ic{gf;;}z;‘}ggg Lack of e Volume growth. =  Central There have been no

appropriate . EPS Secretariat, : chapges to this risk
Failure to comply procedures and - ’ Legal and during the year.
with legislation and compliance would Technical ' '
regulatory result in delays in functions advise
requirements. land development and support

and construction, divisions on

have a detrimental . compliance and

impacton - regulatory

profitability and matters.

reputation and .

potentially lead to : CO',“P any-wide

financial penalties policies,

and other pr(?cc.edures and

regulatory training for key ‘

consequences., regulatory

matters.

Financial risk management

The Company’s financial instruments comprise cash, bank loans and overdrafts, various items such as trade
receivables and trade payables that arise directly from its operations and amounts owed to other Group undertakings.
The main objective of the Company’s policy towards financial instruments is to maximise returns on the Company’s’
cash balances, manage the Company’s workmg capltal requlrements and fmance the Company’s ongoing
operations.

Capital management

The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base to underpin the future development of the business in order to
~ deliver value to shareholders. The Company finances its operations through reinvested profits, bank borrowings,
cash in hand, amounts owed to Group undertakings and the management of working capital.

Management of financial risk -

The main risks associated with the Company’s financial instruments held durmg the year have been identified as
credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and housing market risk. The Board is responsible for managmg these
risks and the policies adopted, which have remained unchanged durmg the year, are set out below.

Credit risk

" The Company’s exposure to credit risk is largely mitigated as the vast majority of the Company’s sales.are made on
completion of a legal contract, at which point monies are received in exchange for transfer of legal title.

There is no specific concentration of credit risk in respect of home sales as the exposure is spread over a number of
customers. In respect of trade receivables, the amounts presented in the Balance Sheet are stated after adjustlng for
any doubtful receivables, based on the judgement of the .Company’s management through using both previous
experience and knowledge of the current position. In managing risk, the Company assesses the credit risk of its
counterparties before entering into a transaction. As part of the disposal of the Company’s interest in Barking
Riverside Limited, as set out in note 7 to the accounts, the Company has a receivable with a fair value of £27.430
million due from L&Q New Homes Limited. The credit risk associated with this receivable is considered to be low
as it is a reputable counterparty. No credit limits were exceeded during the reporting period or subsequently and the
Company does not anticipate any losses from non-performance by these counterparties.

The Board considers the Company’s exposure to credit risk to be acceptable and normal for an entity of its siz¢, in
the industry in which it operates.
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~ Financial risk management (continued)
Liquidity risk -

The Company finances its operations through a mixture of equity (comprising share capital, reserves and reinvested
profit) and debt (comprising bank overdraft facilities, borrowings and amounts owed to Group undertakings). The
Company manages its liquidity risk by monitoring existing facilities and cash flows agamst forecast requiremerits
based on a three-year rolling cash forecast

The Company’s Treasury Policy has, as its principal objective, the maintenance of flexible bank facrhtles in order to
meet anticipated borrowing requirements. The Company’s banking arrangements outlined in note 18 are considered
to be adequate in terms of flexibility and liquidity for its medium-term cash flow needs. Relationships with banks
and overall cash management are co-ordinated centrally. The Company is operating well wrthm its financial -
covenants and available bank facilities. .

Short-term cash surpluses are placed on deposit at competitive rates with high quality counterparties. Other than
disclosed, there are no financial instruments or derivative contracts. The Board therefore considers the Company’s
liquidity risk to be mitigated. .

In relation to land payables, -certain payables are secured on the respective land asset held (see note 13). No other
security is held against any other financial assets of the Company. :

Interest rate risk

The Company’s attitude to interest rate risk and forecast debt is influenced by the existing and forecast conditions
prevailing at the time that each new interest-bearing instrument is entered into. This will determine, amongst other
things, the term and whether a fixed or floating interest rate is obtained. .

Interest rate risk reflects the Company’s exposure to fluctuations in interest rates. The risk arises because the
Company’s overdraft and floating rate bank loans bear interest based on LIBOR.

During the year ended 31 July 2016, it is estimated that an increase of 1% in interest rates applying for the full year
would decrease the Company’s profit before taxation by £0.991 million (2015 — £1.350 million).

Housing market risk

The Company is affected by movements in UK house prices. These iin turn are affected 4by factors such as credit
availability, employment levels, interest rates, consumer confidence and supply of land with planning.

While it is not possible for the Company to fully mitigate housing market risk on a national macroeconomic basis,
the Company does continually monitor its geographical spread within the UK, seeking to balance investment in
areas offering the best immediate returns with a long-term spread of its operatlons throughout the UK to minimise
the effect of local microeconomic fluctuations. .

EU Referendum

The uncertainty around the UK’s decision to leave the EU has not translated into a‘decline in demand for our homes .
nor any change in the willingness of lenders to provide mortgage finance. We continue to monitor the situation
" carefully and the economic environment generally and are confident that given our strong balance sheet and .
disciplined approach to land buying, together with the demand for new homes, that Bellway is well placed to

continue its long-term growth strategy .

Gomg concern statement

After conducting a full review, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources
to fund its operations for the next three years. For this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the accounts.

28



Bellway Homes Limited

Strateglc Report, Dxrectors Report and financial statements
31 July 2016

Strategic report (continued)

Corporate Responsibiljity‘

Our priority as a housebuilder is to provide high quality new homes in desirable surroundings and in doing so
deliver benefits to our shareliolders, customers, employees and other stakeholders. We believe we can fulfil these
aims whilst at the same time operating our business in a socially responsible, ethical and sustainable way; a way that
isn’t just beneficial for the environment and wider society, but one which also makes commercial sense.

We brand our approach to Corporate Responsibility (‘CR’) as Bellway4Good and while our Group Chief Executive
is ultimately responsible for delivering the overall CR programme, the Head of Sustainability and functional heads
meet on a quarterly basis to review_progress within a steering Company convened by the Group Finance Director.
The Head of Sustainability has helped develop a more strategic and robust approach to CR and provides support to
the divisions on CR matters.

" We concentrate our efforts on three core CR ‘pillars’, each with its own clear areas of focus and commitments to
ensure we consider the interests of our diverse stakeholder Company’s and make positive social, environmental and
economic contributions across our business.

Environment Construction Society & Economy

2l U

[ Planning \ ( Charities - \

Biodiversity )

' Carbon emissions Procurement Customers
Ecology R&D Economic
Energy ’ Site management development

Transport - Sustainability Employees
Water Waste : Health & safety
’ : Stakeholders

A J ),

OUR KEY ACHIEVEMENTS IN 2015/16

We have made progress against targets relating to each of these three plllars Some of our key achievements are
outlined below:

e Increased the percentage of coﬁstruction compounds fitted with energy saving devices to 84.3% (2015 -
51.9%). .

e The energy efficiency of our homes, measured by the Dwelling Emission Rate, was on a{'erage 5.7% better than
that required by building regulations. :

e Customer handover folders now contain information on sustainable travel, local recycling centres and energy
efficiency advice. .

. .Improved waste diversion rates to 95.9% (2015 - 92.9%).
e Increased the minimum employer matched pension contribution rate to 4%.

e Achieved an improved overall customer satisfaction score by reference to the average of six customer care
related questions of 85.7%.

e Delivered a 12.5% increase in the number of homes sold.

29



Bellway Homes lelted
Strateglc Report Dlrectors Report and financial statements
31 July 2016

Strategic ‘report (continued)

Corporate Responsibility (continued)

e Achieved an improved National House Building Council safety score of 0.766 (20.15 -0.936).
e Donated £159,228 to our national charity partners .
- Matched and topped-up employees’ fundraising to avt_otal of £111,220.

In total we set ourselves 17 targets for the year, covering a wide range of CR focus areas. A summary of our
performance is set out below with more detail available on our web site www.bellway.co.uk/corporate-responsibility

® 13 targets were achieved .
° 1target is progressing and will be rolled-over into 2016/17
L] 3 targets were missed

In addition we continue to be a constituent of the FTSE4Good Index Series and we participate in the annual Carbon
Disclosure Project for ‘Climate Change’ and ‘Forests’. In November 2015 we received a score of 91% for
disclosure and performance band D under ‘Climate Change’ (2014 — 81% / C) whilst in our first participating year
of the ‘Forests’ programme we were graded ‘Management — B’, the third highest grade available (out of seven
grades). : i

ENVIRONMENT

Climate change and the protection of the environment are two significant challenges for both industry and society as
a whole. We aim to minimise the deleterious effect our sites have on these two important aspects through adopting a
sustainable approach to our operations.

BlodlverSIty and ecology

We undertake thorough risk assessments, mcludmg ecologlcal surveys, to understand the potential impact our
developments may have on the local area. Where necessary, appropriate mitigation work is undertaken prlor to, or
during construction and we contrlbute financially to help safeguard Special Protection Areas.

In accordance with the NPPF, which places greater emphasis on sustainable development, we have continued to
invest in brownfield sites. In 2016 62% (2015 — 74%) of our new homes weére built on brownfield land which, along
with the planting of around 195,400 (2015 — 203,900) trees and shrubs, has helped improve the environment and
ecological biodiversity of local areas. '

Energy

We have continued our work on energy efficiency and all new construction compounds in 2016 were fitted with
energy saving technology to reduce usage. The percentage of construction compounds fitted with energy saving
devices is now 84.3% (2015 — 51.9%). We have also introduced a temperature limit on thermostat heating in our
showhomes to avoid wasteful energy consumption and reduce bills.

Our customers also benefit from our work. The energy effic iciency of our news homes contmues to be better than the

relevant building regulations, with Dwelling Emission Rates in 2016 :on-average 5.7% better than that required by

building regulations. In addition, our house type standardisation work will deliver mcreased controllability of
- heating systems, all leading to reduced energy bills for customers.

We also provide ‘Go Green’ energy efficiency information for new homeowners settmg out how. customers can
further reduce their energy bills, while information on sustainable travel options and local recycling centres is also
mcluded in customers’ welcome packs. .
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Carbon reporting

We are reporting on the Group’s greenhouse gas (‘GHG’) emissions as part of the annual strategic report. Our GHG

. reporting year is the same as our financial year, 1 August 2015 to 31 July 2016, and the previous year’s figures have

been provided as comparators.

Our overall carbon emissions have increased by 49% to 22,334 tonnes COze (2015 - 14 992) driven by a number of -
factors:

Improved data capture and reporting — this year our emissions include gas and electricity consumption from our
inventory of completed homes (prior to handover to customers) and an estimate of consumption for offices
where utllmes are included in a bulldmg service charges. Together these elements represent over 53% of the
increase. |

Increased construction actrvrty —the number of legal completions has increased by 12. 5% to 8,721 (2015 —

7,752).

On a like-for-like comparlson (excludmg carbon from our mventory of completed homes and offices with a utility
recharge) our carbon emissions have increased by 26% to 18,895 (2015 — 14 992) On this same basis carbon .
emissions per home sold have increased by 16% to 2.2 (2015 - 1.9) and carbon emissions per employee have risen
by 16% to 8.0 (2015 - 6. 9)

The Group’s Greenhouse Gas Emission (tonnes of CO2ze¢) (!
: : . . 2016 2015
Excl. Incl. ) Excl. Incl.
inventory ~  inventory inventory inventory
plots / office  plots/office plots/officc ~  plots®/
N ’ recharged recharged recharged office
o ' ' utilities utilities @ utilities recharged
: . ) . utilities @
Scope 1 - Combustion of fuel & operation : ' :
of facilities (including diesel and petrol used on-site 13,845 16,362 10,634 ’ 13,223
and in company cars on Company. business) . ) . :
Scope 2 — Electricity purchased for our own use ¢ ' 5,050 5,972 4358 - 5,174
Total Emissions - : 18,895 22,334 14,992 18,397
Emissions Intensity: - : ) : .
tCO2¢e per home sold ® , _ 22 ' 2.6 B B I 24
tCO2¢ per employee © ' 8.0 9.4. 6.9 . 85
Notes: : :
1. Carbon dioxide equlvalent as per the meaning given in section 93(2) of the Climate Change Act 2008

2.

gl

. Carbon impact for offices with landlord recharged utilities is estimated based on average consumption per square

metre for offices with billed utilities.

Carbon impact of inventory plots is estimated from known consumptron data for c. 60% of plots extrapolated
across all plots for the year.

Based on number of legal completions. :

Based on the average number of employees during the year.

Based on the average number of employees during the year.
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The methodology used to calculate our emissions is based on the UK government’s Environmental Reporting
Guidelines (2013) and emission factors from the 2016 government GHG Conversion Factors for Company
Reporting. The reported emission sources includes those which we are responsible_for, as required under the
Companies Act 2006 (Strateglc Report and Directors’ Reports) Regulations 2013 with the exception of the-
following sources of emissions which were excluded from this report:

e  Gas and electricity from part-exchange properties due to immateriality and dlfﬂculty in accurately reporting
and recording this data. .

¢  Emissions from site-based combined heat and power units for which we do not have operational control.

Both the 2015 and 2016 emissions have been externally ‘verified by Zeco Energy to a ‘reasonable assurance level’ as
part of a review of our carbon footprint. .

2016 saw the appointment of a third party company to help manage our utility portfolio, delivering improvements in
the accuracy and collection of carbon -data. This has given greater visibility to the areas of significant energy
consumption across the business. Along with amove to internal quarterly reporting, this will enable us to consider
- carbon reductlon targets in future years.

CONSTRUCTION

We take a partnership approach to-the construction of our developmenis. Working closely with.suppliers, sub-. -
contractors, local authorities and local communities, we aim to create new, attractive and sustainable communities
and developments. '

Communities

Creating sustainable communities is something we are passionate about. In order to succeed, developments must

" _.meet the needs not only of potential customers, but also of existing residents in already established, neighbouring

communities. To this end, for all new developments of 50 homes or more, we undertake two way consuitation and
dialogue with local communities, -including communication through information leaflets, public exhibitions and °
meetings, work'shops and websites. We take on board feedback we receive and, where appropriate, make changes
thereby ensuring local people have-the opportunity to help shape developments w:thm their community.

Our contribution to local communities extends beyond the creation of new developments Each year,_as part of
securing planning permission for our developments, we enter into planning obligations via section 106 agreements
and provide affordable housing contributions and Community Infrastructure Levy payments for the provision and
enhancement of such things as education facilities, healthcare, sports facilities, transport improvements, ecology and
biodiversity and recreation space. In 2016 we made section 106 payments totalling £147.9 million, almost double
our payments last year (2015 — £79.0 million). -

Waste :

Our primary objective remains to reduce the amount of waste produced; beginning with the planning and design
process, filtering down through the management of the construction process and across the lifetime of the -
development. Our work on standardisation of house types will deliver further savings on waste and materials as they

" are rolled out across our divisions. :

Waste however is an inevitable by-product of what we.do and accordingly we continue to reuse and recycle waste
where we can. Our waste diversion rate improved to 95.9% this year (2015 — 92.9%), leading to a 36% reduction in
tonnes of waste sent to landfill. We continue to work with our key waste contractors to lmprove waste management
reduce costs and control reporting. .
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Supply chain

Our aim is to be the preferred partner for our suppliers and sub-contractors through the development of long-term
relationships. We operate a range of Company contracts for key raw materials, providing security of supply, quality
consistency and costs benefits to our business. We are also committed to supporting the local economy where we
operate and our divisions source their remaining material requirements from a range of local suppliers, as well as
employing local sub-contractors to undertake work on our developments.

Wherever possible we purchase our materials from sustainable sources, with all our solid timber sourced from
managed stewardship forests accredited to PEFC® or FSCC® standards. We continue to be a signatory of the
Prompt Payment Code and are committed to paying our sub-contractors and suppliers within clearly defined terms.
Quality ‘ '

We are pleased to report that a record 43 Site Managers were awarded NHBC Pride in the Job Awards this year, a
30% increase on last year (2015 — 33). Along with the success of our Site Managers in the NHBC’s safety awards
(see below), we are extremely proud of this external recognition, reflecting the quality and high standards our
employees are encouraged and supported to achieve. .

ECONOMY _
The UK housebﬁilding industry is a key component of the national economy and its contribution to' social and
economic sustainability has been highlighted in a report commissioned by the Home Builders Federation (HBF)(”
Headline figures for the industry from the 2014 year include:

e £12.5 billion invested in land and building for homes

e £5.5 billion spent in the,supply‘chain, 90% of which stayed in the UK

e More than 600,000 jobs created ' A

e £2 billion contribution to public services through tax paid and infrastructure improvements

e £3 billion investment in affordable housing

e £131 mill‘ioﬁ invested in open spaces, community, sports and leisure facilities

e £3.8 billon spent in the local economy by residents of new homes ' '

As the UK’s fourth largest housebuilder by volume, we are committed to helping satisfy the supply/demand
imbalance in the UK housing market and has an important role in delivering these added-value benefits.

Customers

We continue to focus on prowdmg excellent service to our customers and the appointment of a Group Customer .
Care Manager this year has provided additional resource in this area as we continue to grow. Although we narrowly
missed out on regaining our 5 star status from the HBF this year, we achieved the highest score. of the 4 star
developers who completed more than 2,000 plots within the year. We also exceeded our internal customer care
target which is measured by reference to the average of six customer care related questions across quality and
service, and scored an average of 85.7% agamst a target of 83.8%. Increased training on quahty and service levels
ensures that we continue to push hard to regain our 5 star status in the commg year. .

! The Programmie for the Endorsement of Forest Certification (PEFC) is an intemational'noﬁ-proﬁt, non-governmental
organization dedicated to promoting Sustainable Forest Management through independent third-party certification.

2 The Forest Stewardship Council (FSC) is an international not-for-profit, multi-stakeholder organization established in 1993 to
promote responsible management of the world's forests.

3 “The Economic Footprint of UK House Building’ (March 2015), prepared by the mdependent planning, design and economics
consultancy Nathanial Litchfield & Partners.
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Affordability

Affordability is often an obstacle for customers wishing to get onto the property ladder and/or moving up to larger
properties as their needs change. The extension of the Government’s Help to Buy Scheme in England and the
introduction of the London scheme in February has proved to be a huge help to all prospective purchasers and 2,626
of our customers purchased their home using Help to Buy in 2015/16.

A varied range of houses and apartments is important to enable customers to 1dentlfy the nght home for their needs
and budget. In 2016 our average selling price was £252,793 (2015 - £223,809) with 11% of our homes being sold to
unassisted first time buyers. We also continue to provide a part exchange service for existing home owners, a facility
that can help remove some of the uncertainties surrounding home buying chains, and in 2015/16 7% of our
customers took advantage of this service. ,

Our continued commitment to building sustainable communities saw us deliver 1 ,376 social homes in 2016 (2015 -
1,574). This represents 16% (2015 —= 20%) of our legal completlons and helps to support social inclusion within the
developments and communities we create. :

Employees

Our employees are key to the success of our business and we are committed to ensuring that they, and our -
contractors, are treated with fairness,. consideration and respect. We have policies and procedures in place to ensure
that equal opportunities exist for all, with no discrimination based on age, colour, disability, ethnic origin, gender,
- marital status, nationality, parental status, race, religion, belief or sexual orientation. We also operate policies
covering bribery, bullying or harassment and whistleblowing, ensuring we operate in accordarice with the highest
standards of honesty and integrity. We also act in accordance with the Modern Slavery Act 2015 and we will be
.publishing a'slavery and human trafficking statement for the financial year to 31 July 2016 on our website.

We aim to provide all employees with a rewarding and fulfilling career and this year saw further steps taken,
including the appointment of a Human Resources Director and a Learning and Development Manager. Training
hours have increased by around 36% and 48% of Site Managers and Assistant Site Managers now have their NVQ
Level 6 or higher qualification (2015 - 34%). We also launched the Bellway Learning Hub, an online learning
platform that will allow us to dellver a wide range of mandatory and developmental training across the -entire
Company.

Continued growth in legal completions and ‘new divisions has seen employee numbers rise by around 9% to an
average of 2,366 across the year (2015 - 2,162), although the continuing industry-wide skills shortage has seen
employee turnover increase to 23.4% (2015 - 19.1%). We have however increased the number of apprentices and
graduates within the business by 14% to 83 (2015 - 73) and we improved the minimum employer matched pension
contrlbutlon rate from 3% to 4%, helpmg employees invest for their retlrement .

Safety

We remain committed to ensuring all our developments operate in a safe manner and that employees, sub-
contractors, suppliers, customers and members of the public are not put at risk.

We understand ‘that training plays an important role in maihtaining high standards of health and safety. The - -
appointment of a Learning and Development Manager will improve the monitoring and delivery of training across.
the Company and help to ensure all employees remain in compliance with our training matrix. .
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We are proud that we continue to be recognised as amongst the best and safest in the industry with our Site -
Managers winning five awards in the 2016 NHBC Health and Safety Awards, two of whom went on to achieve
Highly Commended awards. Our health and safety and site management teams have continued their excellent work -
over the past year and our NHBC safety incident rate of 0.766 (2015 - 0.936), where a lower score reﬂects fewer
reportable health and safety issues raised, has fallen for the third year running.

It is therefore disappointing that our RIDDOR incident rate rose for the first time in 4 years, to 445.19 accidents per
100,000 site operatiVes (2015 - 430.75), 3% up on 2015, ‘Slips, trips and falls’ were the most frequent reason for
reportable incidents in 2015/16 and increased focus will be given to this area in the coming year, with a specnﬁc
target to deliver site briefings on this issue at 100% of sites.

Charitable engagement

As a responsible business, part of our ethos is to support both the local communities where we build as well as those
sections of society less fortunate than ourselves. The past two. years have seen a marked change in the way we
manage our charitable engagement with focus now split across three key areas:

e Supporting national charities — each year we enter into partnership with charities who benefit from direct
donations and employee fundraising.

e  Supporting our divisions — each operatihg division (and Head Office) manages a separate budget to support

local charitable and community causes.
AN

¢  Supporting our employees — we ‘match’ fundraising for our national charity and ‘top-up’ employee fUndraising
undertaken for their chosen causes. '

In 2015/16 our national charities were again the British Heart Foundation and the Construction Youth Trust. We are
very proud to report that through a combination of employee fundraising, matched funding and direct donations, we
successfully donated £159,228 to these two great causes in 2015/16, bringing the total donated since the start of the
partnerships in January 2015 to £265,117. In the coming financial year we begin a new partnership with Cancer
Research UK and with the continued help of our generous employees we hope to raise a similar amount for this
charity which is close to the hearts of many of our employees.

In total 2015/16 saw £284,704 (2015 — £183,540) donated to charities, community Companys and local good causes,
. an increase of 55.1% on last year. Our donations totalled £210,000 (2015 — 146,010), up 43.8% on last year, while
employees raised £74,704 (2015 — £37,530), up 99.1% on last year.

LOOKING FORWARD TO 2016/17

A new set of 15 targets for the 2016/17 financial year are now in place covering a range of focus areds, with five
targets allocated to each of our three CR ‘pillars (Envnronment Construction; Society and Economy). A few
examples of the new targets are listed below:

e  We will limit the engine size of fork lift trucks to 55 watts on all sites by 2019, delivering fuel and carbon
savings.

e Wewill maintain the propomon of waste diverted from landfill on construction sites at 95% or above

e  Wewill delwer ‘slips, trlps and falls’ site briefings at 100% of sites to aid a reduction in our R]DDOR incident
" rate. .

All 15 targets for 2016/17 can be viewed on our website, along with details on our performance against our 2015/ 16
targets and more information on activities in each of our CR ‘pillars’: www.bellway.co.uk/corporate-responsibility

. In summary, this has been a successful year in the development of the Bellway4Good strategy and we remain
committed. to the principles of operating our business in a socially responsible and sustainable way. We have
delivered a strong performance against our 2015/16 CR targets and we look forward to making further progress in
the commg year. ‘
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Approval of the Strategic Report
The Strategic Report was approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by

Pensstnn\ /
Ted Ayres
Director : 17 October 2016
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,Directors’ report

- Bellway Homes lelted is a wholly owned subsidiary of Bellway p.l.c. The principal actnvrty of the company is-
houseburldmg

Directors . ’ _
.The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this report were as follows:

JK Watson
EK Ayres
KD Adey

Whistleblowing arrangements

Throughout. the year, the Company ‘has operated a ‘whistleblowing’ arrangement whereby all employees of the
Company are able, via either the Group Company Secretary and Legal Counsel or, alternatively, an independent.
_external third party, to report, confidentially, any malpractice or matters of concern they have regardmg the actions
of management and employees. This facility is also available for employees to report any breaches of the
Company’s Anti-Bribery Policy. The Group Audit Committee and the Board regularly review the effectiveness of
this arrangement.

Emplbyees

Bellway is an equal opportunities employer. It is the Company’s policy to develop and. apply, throughout the.
Company, procedures and practices which are designed to ensure that equal opportunities are .provided to all
employees. of Bellway, or those who seek employment with the Company, irrespective of their age, colour,
disability, ethnic origin, gender, marital status, nationality, parental status, race, religion, belief or sexual orientation.

All employees, whether part-time, full-time or temporary, are treated farrly and equally. Selection for employment,
promotion, training or other matters affecting their employment is on the basis of aptitude and ability. All employees
are supported and encouraged to develop their full potential and the talents and resources of the workforce are fully
utilised to maximise the efficiency of the organisation.

It is Company policy to give‘full and fair consideration to the employmeni needs of disabled persons (and persons
who become disabled whilst employed by the Company) and to comply with any current legislation with regard to
disabled persons. Training at each division is planned and monitored through an annual training plan.

The lmportance of ‘good communications with employees is recogmsed by the directors. Each division maintains
good employee relations using a variety of means appropriate to its own particular needs, with guidance when
necessary from Head Office.

All new employees, when eligible, are automatically entered into the Corhpany’s, pension arrangements. In addition,
the Company operates a savings related share option scheme. The Company also provides life assurance cover to all
- staff and offers a private medical scheme, childcare vouchers and personal accident insurance arrangements.

Environmental issues

The Board recognises the importance of environmental issues and when carrying out its business endeavours to
make a positive contribution to the quality of life, both for the present and the future. An Environmental Policy,
approved by the Board, has been.adopted by all trading entities within the Company, which is available on the
Company’s website, along with the'Company’s other corporate responsibility policies. Environmental issues are
addressed in the Corporate Responsibility section of the Strategic Report on page 29 and on the Company’s website -
at www.bellway.co. uk/corporate responsrblllty

Health and safety at work

The Company. promotes all aspects of health and safety throughout ltS operations-in the interests of employees, sub-
contractors, visitors to its sites and j premrses and the general public. Health and safety issues are considered at each
Board meeting and are addressed in the Strategic Report and on the Company’s website at
www.bellway.co.uk/corporate-responsibility. :
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Directors’ report (continued)

Information on those third parties with which the Company has contracts or arrangements essential to its
_business

The Company is party to a number of banking agreements with major clearing banks. The withdrawal of such
facilities could have a material effect on the financing of the business. There are no other arrangements which the
Company considers to be critical to the performance of the business.

Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance and indemnification of directors

The Company carries appropriate insurance cover in respect of possible legal action being taken against its directors
and senior employees. The Articles provide the directors with further protection against liability to third parties,

subject to the conditions set out in the' Companies Act 2006 Such qualifying th1rd party indemnity provision
remains in force as$ at the date of this report. S

- Disclosure of all relevant information to the auditor

The directors who held office at the date of this report confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there is no
relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware and that each director has taken all the steps
that he or she ought to have taken as a director to make himself or herself aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the Company’s auditor is aware of that information. This confirmation is given and should be
interpreted in accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the Companies Act 2006.

Auditor

Pursuant to Section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, the auditor will be deemed to be reappointed and KPMG LLP
will therefore continue in office.

By order of the Board
Simon Scoug Seaton Burn House
Secretary Dudley Lane

Seaton Burn
Newcastle upon Tyne
NE13 6BE

17 October 2016
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Strateglc Report the
Directors’ Report and the financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Strateglc Report, the Directors’ Report and the ﬁnancnal statements in
accordance with apphcable law and regulations. .

Company law requires the directors to prepare fi fi nancral statements for each financial year. Under that law they have
elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and applicable law.’

Under company law the directors must not apprm)e the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In
preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
e make Judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
" e state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU; and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.

The directors are responsrble for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They have general
responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the company and to
prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.
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| KPMG LLP - B

.Quayside House
110 Quayside
‘Newcastle upon Tyne
NE1 3DX . -

United Kingdom

Indépendent auditor’s report to the members of Bellway Homes Limited

.We have audited the financial statements of Bellwéy Homes Limited for the year ended 31 July 2016 set out on -
pages 42 to 73. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and
Intematlonal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU.

- This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume respon51b111ty to anyone other than the company and the company’s

. members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opmtons we have formed.

Respectlve responSIbllltles of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 39, the directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our
responsibility is to audit, and express an opinion on, the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is prdvided on the Financial Reporting Council’s
website at www.frc.org.uk/auditscopeukprivate.

~ Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the company s aﬂ'alrs as at 31 July 2016 and of its profit for the year
- then ended;

e have been properiy prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU; and
e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Compames Act 2006.
. Opinion on other matter prescrlbed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for
which the financial statements-are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Bellway Homes Limited (continued)

Matters on which we are requlred to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requlres us to report to
you if, in our opinion: .

. 'adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not beén received from *
branches not visited by us; or

e the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
A ‘ . ) :
e - certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

e . we have not received all the information and explanation we require for our audit.

R

-Nick Plumb (Senior Statutory Auditor) ’ ' ‘ 17 October 2016
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor .
Chartered Accountants
Quayside House
110 Quayside
Newcastle Upon Tyne
NE1 3DX
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- Income Statement

Sfor the year ended 31 July 2016

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Administrative expenses.

Operating profit
Profit on disposal of
investment in joint
venture ’

- Finance income
-Finance expenses

Profit before taxation
- Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Note

1,2

Bellway Homes Limited

Strategic Report, Directors’ Report and financial statements

2016

- 2015

31 July 2016

All of the operations were continuing in the current and prior ye‘ar.

Statement of Comiprehensive Income
Sor the year ended 31 July 2016 '

‘Profit for the year

Other comprehensive expensé

Items that will not be recycled to the income statement:
Remeasurement losses on defined benefit pension plans
Income tax on other comprehensive expense

Other comprehensive expense for the period, net of

income tax

2016 2016 2015 2015
Pre- Exceptional Total Pre-  Exceptional Total
exceptional item exceptional item
item . item '
(note 7) (note 7)

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
2,240,612 - 2,240,612 1,764,640 - 4 1,764,640
(1,665,615) - (1,665,615) (1,338,116) 6,865 (1,331,251)
574,997 - 574,957 426,524 6,865 . 433,389
(83,549) - (83,549) (69,419) - (69,419)

- 491,448 - .491,448 357,105 6,865 363,970
- 7,041 7,041 - - -

1,300 - 1,300 1,066 - 1,066
(12,326) - (12,326) (13,719) - (13,719)
480,422 7,041 487,463 344,452 ' 6,865 351,317
(94,768) - (94,768) (69,117) (1,421) (70,538)
385,654 7,041 392,695 275,335 5,444 280,779
Note " 2016 2015

£000 £000

392,695 280,779
24 (1,806) (3,239)

8 (136) 648
(1,942) (2,591)

390,753 278,188

Total comprehensive income fdr the"period

42



Bellway Homes lelted .
Strateglc Report Directors’ Report and financial statements
31 July 2016

Statement of Changes in Equity

-at 31 July 2016 .
' Share Retained Total
Note capital earnings equity
£000 £000 © £000
Atl August_2014 i 800 749,127 . . 749,927
Total comprehensive income for the period . .
Profit for the period ) ’ : - 280,779 280,779
Other comprehensive expense* : ’ ) - (2,591) (2,591)
Total comprehensive jncome for the period ' - 278,188 C 278,188
Transactions with shareholders recorded directly in
equity:
Credit in relation to share‘options and tax thereon - . 8, 24 o ) 1,796 1,796
Total contributions by and distributions to shareholders - . - 1,796. 1,796
Balance at 31 July 2015 : . ' ’ - 800 1,029,111 . 1,029,911
Total comprehensive income for the period . ’
Profit for the period : - 392,695 . 392,695
Other comprehensive expense* - (1,942) (1,942)
Total comprehensive income for the period - 390,753 A390,753
Transactions with shareholders recorded directly in
equity: . . )
Dividends on equity shares . - (170,000) (170,000)
- Credit in relation to share options and tax thereon : 8, 24 .- 1,264 . 1,264
Total contributions by and distributions to shareholders - ] (168,736) ‘(168,736) :
Balance at 31 July 2016 ' . 800 - 1,251,128 1,251,928 .

*Additional breakdown is provided in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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Balance Sheet
at 31 July 2016
Notes 2016 2015
£000 £000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 9 10,333 10,058
Investment property 10 - -
Investments in subsidiaries and joint arrangements 11 4,599 39,005
Trade and other receivables 15 11,406 -
Deferred tax assets 12 2,403 2,626
28,741 51,689
Current assets )
Inventories 13 2,547,686 2,144,835
Trade and other receivables 15 78,462 59,679
Cash and cash equivalents 21 16,214 10,803
2,642,362 2,215,317
Total assets 2,671,103 2,267,006
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Retirement benefit obligations 24 8,036 7,452
Trade and other payables 17 82,959 49,897
90,995 57,349
Current liabilities
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 16, 21 35,682 93,753
Corporation tax payable 50,401 37,629
Trade and other payables 17 1,242,097 1,048,364
1,328,180 1,179,746
Total liabilities 1,419,175 1,237,095
Net assets 1,251,928 1,029,911
EQUITY
Share capital 19 800 800
Retained earnings 1,251,128 1,029,111
Total equity 1,251,928 1,029,911

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 17 October 2016 and were signed on its
behalf by:

A g

Keith Adey
Director

Registered number: 670176
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Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended 31 July 2016
. . Note

Cash flows from operatmg activities

Profit for the year

Depreciation charge

Exceptional profit

- Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment

Loss/(prof t) on sale of investment property

Finance income

Finance expenses

Share-based payment expense

Income tax expense

Increase in inventories

(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables

Proceeds from sale of available for sale portfollo — exceptional
item - 7

N ‘ .
ORARAWWNO .

Cash from operatrons
Interest paid
Income tax paid

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

.Proceeds from sale of investment property

Proceeds from sale of investment in joint venture — exceptional
item )
.- Increase in loans to joint arrangements .

Interest received

‘Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
(Decrease)/increase in bank borrowmgs
Dividends paid ’

- Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents : 20
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 21

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ) 21

2016
£000

392,695
2,900

(7,041)

(152)
148

(1,300) .

12,326
1,568
94,768

(402,851)

(26,031)

240,464

307,494

(4,281)

(82,213).

221,000

(3,374)
351
442

16,600
(1,768)
231

12,482

(47;500)
(170,000)

(217,500)

15,982

(2,950)

13,032

31 July 2016

2015
£000

280,779
2,633

' (6,865)

(247)
(1,116)
(1,066)
13,719
. 1,544
70,538

(348,617)

9,275
(28,250)

32,462

24,789
(6,778)
(61,600)

(43,589)

(5,404)
374
6,199

(2,790)
818

(803)

" 50,000

, 50,000

5,608
(8,558)

(2,950)
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Notes

1 Accounting policies

Basis of preparation _
Bellway Homes Limited (the ‘Company ) is a company mcorporated in England and Wales.

The Company s financial statements have' been prepared and approved by the directors in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (‘Adopted TFRSs’) and have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for assets recognised at fair value through profit or loss and other ﬁnancral assets, whrch
are stated at their fair value. :

The Company is exempt by. virtue of Section 400 of the Companies Act 2006 from the requirement to prepare group
financial statements. These financial statements present information about the Company as an individual
undertaking and not about its Group. These financial statements were approved for issue on 17 October 2016.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Adopted IFRSs requires management to make
‘judgements, ‘estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and ]labllltles that are not readlly apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. . ,

The Company’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and
position are set out in the Operating Review on pages 13 to 18. The financial position of the Company, its cash
flows, liquidity position and borrowing facilities are described in the Financial Review on pages 19 to 20. The
Company’s policies and processes for managing its capital, financial risk, and its exposures to credit, 11quld1ty,
interest rate and housing market risk are described in the Risk Management sectlon of the Strategic Report.

The Company is subject to-a cross guarantee banking -arrangement with its ultrmate parent undertaking, Bellway
p.lc. and certain other Group undertakings. Detailed information regarding the financial position of the Group
headed by Bellway p.l.c., its cash flows, liquidity position and borrowing facilities are ‘included in the financial
statements of Bellway p.l.c., which can be.obtained from the address given in note 26.

The Group’s activities are financed principally by a combination of ordinary shares, and-bank borrowings less cash
in hand. At 31 July 2016, the net debt was £19.5 million having generated cash of £63.5 million during the year.
The Group has operated within all of its banking covenants throughout the year. In addition, the Group had bank
facilities of £500.0 million, expiring in tranches up to November 2020, with £467.5 million available for drawdowns
under such facilities at 31 July 2016. - .

The directors consider that the Company is well placed to manage business and ﬁnancral risks in the current
economic environment and have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly they continue to adopt the going.concern basis in
preparing these financial statements. .

Judgements-made by the dlrectors, in the applrcatlon of these accounting polrcres and Adopted IFRSs, that have a
significant effect on the financial statements and estlmates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next.
year, are discussed below. .

The accounting policies set out below 'have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all periods
presented in these financial statements. '

Effect of new standards and interpretations effective for the first time

During the year the Company adopted various standards and interpretations that were applrcable for the first time in
the Company’s fi nancial statements for the year ended 31 July 2016. These standards and interpretations have not
had a material effect on these financial statements.

The Company adopted the following amendment during the current financial year:

- IAS 19 ‘Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions’. The amendment simplifies the accounting for
contributions that are independent of the number of years of employee service. The adoptmn of this
amendment has not had any effect on the Company’s profit for the perrod or equrty,
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- Notes (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)
Effect of new standards and mterpretatlon effective for the first time (continued)

The Company has also adopted Annual Improvements 2010-2012 and Annual Improvements 2011-2013 during the
current financial year. The adoptlon of these has not had a material effect on the Company’s profit for the period or
equity. .

The other standards and mterpretatlons that are applicable for the first time in the Company s fmanmal statements
" for the year ended 31 Ji uly 2016 have had no effect on these financial statements.

Property, plant and equlpment

Items are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and. impairment losses. Depreciation on property, plant and
equipment is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over their estlmated useful lives over the
following number of years:

- Plant, fixtures and ﬁttings -3 to 10 years.

Freehold buildings - 40 years.
Freehold land is not depreciated.

Investment property

Investment property is mltlally recognised at cost Subsequent to recognition, mvestment property is measured usmg
the cost model and is carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is charged where material, so as to write off the cost less residual value of the investment properties. *

over their estimated useful lives. The residual values and useful lives of 1nvestment properties are rev1ewed at each
f nancial year end.

* The useful life of investment properties has been assessed as 10 years.
Land is not depreciated. '
‘Investments in subsidiaries
Interests in subsidiary undertakings are valued at cost less impairment.
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost, in relation to work in progress and
showhomes, comprises direct materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads, not including
any general administrative overheads, that-have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Net reallsable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion and
overheads.

Land held for development, including land in the course of development until legal completion of the sale of the
asset, is initially recorded at cost. Regular reviews are carried out to identify-any impairment in the value of the land
by comparing the total estimated selling prices less estimated selling expenses against the book cost of the land plus
estimated costs to complete. Provision is made for any irrecoverable amounts.  Where, through deferred payment
terms, the fair value of land purchased differs from the amount that will subsequently. be paid in settling the liability,
the difference is charged as a finance expense in the i income statement over the period to settlement.

Options purchased in respect of land are capitalised initially at cost. Regular reviews are carried out for 1mpa|rment
in the value of these options, and provisions made accordingly to reflect loss of value. The impairment reviews
consider the period elapsed since, the date of purchase of the option given that the option contract has not been
exercised at the review date. Further, the impairment reviews consider the remaining life of the option, taking '
account of any concerns over whether the remaining time available will allow a successful exercise of the option.
The carrying cost of the option at the date of exercise is included within the cost of land purchased as a result of the
option exercise. :
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‘Notes (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)
Inventories (continued)

Investments in land without the benefit of planning consent, either through the purchase of land or non-refundable
deposits paid on land purchase contracts subject to planning consent, are included initially at cost. Regular reviews .
are carried out for impairment in the values of these investments and-provision made to reflect any irrecoverable
element. The impairment reviews consider the existing use value of the land and assess the likelihood of achlevmg
planning consent and the value thereof.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are stated at thelr fair value at the date of initial recogmtlon and subsequently at amortised cost
less allowances for impairment.

Consideration which is contingent on future events is recognised based on the estimated amount if it is probable and
can be reliably measured. Any subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consrderatlon are recognised in
profit or loss: :

Other financial assets

Other financial assets are classified as being available-for-sale and are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or
loss being recognised directly in equity within retained earnings, except for impairment losses and changes in future .
cash flows, which are recognised directly in the income statement. When these investments are de-recognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised directly in equity is recognised in the income statement. Where these
investments are interest- bearmg, interest calculated using the effective mterest method is recogmsed in the income
statement.

A description of the valuation technique is given in note 14.
-Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash balances in hand and in the bank (including short-term cash deposits). '
The Company utilises bank overdraft facilities, which are repayable on demand, as part of its cash management
policy. As a consequence, bank overdrafts are included as a component of net cash and cash equivalents within the
cash flow statement. :

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are stated at their fair value at the date of initial recogmtlon and subsequently
at amortised cost. .

Trade and other payables

Trade payables on normal terms are not interest-bearing and are stated at their nominal value. Trade payables on
deferred terms, most notably in relation to land purchases, are recorded initially at their fair value. The discount.to
nominal value is amortised over the period to settlement and charged to finance expenses. - .

Dividends on shares presented within shareholders’ funds

Dividends unpaid at the balance sheet date are only recognised as a llabnllty at that date to the extent that they are
appropriately authorised and are no'longer at the discretion of the Company: Unpald dividends that do not meet
these criteria are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. :

Other dividends are recognised as a llablllty in the perlod in which they are approved by the shareholders. Interim
dnvndends are recognised when paid.

Classification of equity instruments and financial liabilities issued by the Company

Equity instruments issued by the Company are treated as equlty only to the extent that they meet the following two
conditions: .

(a) they include no contractual obllgatlons upon the Company to deliver cash or other financial assets or to exchange
financial assets or financial liabilities with another party under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the
Company, and
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Notes (continued)

1 Acco(mting policies (continued) 4
Classification of equity instruments and financial liabilities issued by the Company (continued) -

(b) where the instrument will or may be settled in the Company’s own equity instruments, it is either a non-
derivative that includes no obligation to deliver a variable number of the Company’s own equity instruments or
is a derivative that will be settled by the Company’s exchanging a ﬁxed amount of cash or other ﬁnancral assets
fora ﬁxed number of its own equity instruments. :

To the extent that this definition is not met, the proceeds of issue are classified as a financial liability. Where the
instrument so classified takes the legal form of the Company’s own shares, the amounts presented in these financial
statements for called up share capital and share premium account exclude amounts in relation to those shares. ’

Grants

Grants are included within work in progress in the balance sheet to the extent that they contribute to construction
costs and within deferred income to the extent that they contribute to site income. Grants are credited to the income
statement over the life of the developments to which they relate.

Revenue recogmtlon

\

(a) Private and social (turnkey and plot sale) housing sales and land sales

- Revenue is recognised in the income statement when the srgmf' cant risks and rewards of ownershlp have transferred
to the purchaser, which is when legal title is transferred :

'(b) Social housing propertres as part of a land sale and design and build contract

Revenue is recognised in the income statement when the significant risks and rewards of ownershrp have transferred
to the purchaser, whlch is when the homes are build complete and all material contractual obhgatlons have been
fulfilled.

’

Iricentives

Sales incentives are substantially cash in nature but include part-exchange costs which mainly relate to amounts
written down, where the part-exchange allowance given to the purchaser of the new home is greater than the
valuation of the part-exchange property. Incentives are accounted for by reducing the housebuild revenue by the cost
to the Company of provrdmg the mcentlve : .

Rental income ]
Rental income is recognised in the income statement on‘a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
Part-exchange properties

- The purchase and subsequent sale of part-exchange properties is an activity undertaken in order to achieve the sale -
of a new property. As such, the activity is regarded as a mechanism for sellmg Impalrments and gains or losses on
the sale of part-exchange properties are classified as a cost of sale. .

Contingent liabilities

Where the Company enters into ﬁnancral guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies
within the Company, the Company considers these to be insurance arrangements, and accounts for them as such. In
-this respect, the Company treats the guarantee contract as a contingent liability until such time as it becomes
probable that the Company will be required to make a payment under the guarantee.. .
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N ot_es (continued)

1 " Accounting policies (continued)
.Taxation .

The charge for taxation is based on the result for the year and takes into account current and deferred taxation: The
"charge is recognised in the income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in equity in
.. which case it is recognised in equity.

Deferred taxation is provided for all temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases. The amount of deferred tax provnded is based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the canymg amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
_ or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available ‘
against which the asset can be utilised: Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Employee benefits - retirement benefit costs

The defined benefit scheme liability is the présent value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date
less the fair value of scheme assets. The calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit
credit method. All remeasurement gains and losses are recognised immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income. (SOCI'). Net interest cost is calculated on the defined benefit liability for the period by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit liability at the start of the year.” Return on plan assets in excess of
the amounts included in the net interest cost are recognised in full in the SOCIL. Further details of the scheme and the
valuation methods applied may be found in note 24.

Defined contribution pension costs are charged to the i income statement in .the period for which contributions are
payable.

Employee benefits - share-based payment

Where the Company’s parent company, Bellway p.l.c., has granted share options over its shares to employees of the
Company in accordance with IFRS 2 ‘Share-based Payments’, the fair value of equity-settled share options granted
is recognised as an employee expense with a corresponding increase in equity. The fair value is measured as at the
date the options are granted and the charge is only amended if vesting does not take place due to non-market
conditions not being met. Various option pricing models are used according to the terms of the option scheme under
which the options were granted. The fair value is spread over the period during which the employees become
unconditionally entitled to the options. The amount recogmsed as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number
of options that vest. At the balance sheet date, if it is expected that non-market conditions will not be satisfied, the
cumulative expense recognised in relation to the relevant options is reversed. :

With respect to share-based payments, a deferred tax asset is recognised -on the relevant tax base. The tax base is .
then compared to the cumulative share-based payment expense recognised in the income statement. Deferred tax
arising on the excess of the tax base over the cumulative share-based payment expense recognised in the income
statement has been recognised directly .in equity outside the SOCI as share based.payments are considered to be
transactions with shareholders

Operating leases
Operating lease rentals are charged to the income statement on a straight-lme basis over the period of the lease.
Finance income and expenses

Finance income includes interest receivable on bank deposits. Other financial assets relate to the deferred element of
revenues receivable from the sale of homes under shared equity schemes. The discounting of these other financial
assets produces a notional interest receivable amount and this is credited to cost of sales.

Finance expenses includes interest on bank borrowings. The discounting of the deferred payments for land
- purchases produces a notional interest payable amount and this is also charged to finance expenses. :

Exceptionai items

Exceptional items are those which, in the opinion of the Board, are material by size or nature, non- recurring, and of
such significance that they require separate disclosure on the face of the income statement.
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\
1 Accounting policies (continued)

Accounting estimates and judgements ‘
Management considers the key estimates and judgements made in the financial statements to be related to:
Valuation of work in progress and land held for development .

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price (in the ordinary course of business) less all estimated costs of completion and overheads. Valuations of
site/phase work in progress are carried out at regular intervals and estimates, of the cost to complete:a site and
estimates of anticipated revenues are required to enable a development profit to be determined. Management are
required to employ considerable judgement in estimating the profitability of a site/phase-and in assessing any
impairment provisions which may be required. -

For both the years ended 31 July 2016 and 31 July 2015, a full review of inventories has been performed and write
downs have been made where cost exceeds net realisable value. Estimated selling prices have been reviewed on a
site by site/phase by phase basis and have been amended based on local management and the directors’ assessment
of current market conditions. For the years ended 31 July 2016 and 31 July 2015 no exceptional charge has resulted
from the review.

Gross profit recognition

Gross profit is recognised for completed house sales based on the latest whole site/phase gross margin which is an
output of the site/phase valuation. These valuations, which are updated at frequent intervals throughout the life of
the site/phase, use actual and forecast selling prices, land costs and construction costs and are sensitive to future
. movements in both the estimated cost to complete and expected selling prices. Forecast selling prices are inherently
uncertam due to changes in market conditions.

Standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following relevant amendments which have not been
applied in these financial statements, were in issue and endorsed by the EU but not yet effective: '

.- IAS'1 ‘Disclosure Initiative’. The amendment explores opportunities to see how those applying IFRS can
" improve and simplify disclosures w1th1n existing dlsclosure requirements. This is effective for the period
‘beginning on 1 August 2016.

- Annual Improvements to IFRSs.2012-2014 Cycle This is effectlve for the period beginning on 1 August
2016.

The followmg standards, which are expected to effect the ﬁnancnal statements of the Company, have not been
- applied in these financial statements, but were in issue although not yet endorsed by the EU:

- IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’: This is a converged standard from the TASB and FASB
on revenue recognition to assist with comparability of revenue globally. This is effective for the period
beginning on 1.August 2018. It is expected that this standard will result in presentation changes to the
income statement to show part-exchange revenue and' expenses separately between gross profit and -
operating profit. They are currently recognised on a net basis within cost of sales. -

- . IFRS 16 ‘Leases’. Thls standard replaces the existing standard IAS 17 ‘Leases’, where lessees are required
to make a distinction between a finance lease (on balance sheet) and an operating lease (off balance sheet).
IFRS 16 requires lessees to recognise a lease liability reflecting future lease payments and a ‘right of use
asset® for virtually all lease contracts. This is effective for the period beginning on 1 August.2019, with
earlier adoption permitted if IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ is also applied. The
Company has not yet assessed the full effect of this standard.

Of the other IFRSs that are avallable for early adoptlon none are expected to have a material effect on the fi nancnal ‘
statements.
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2 ‘Segmental analysis

The Board (the Chief Operating Decision Maker as defmed in ]FRS 8) regularly reviews the Company s
performance and balancé sheet position at both a consolidated and divisional level. Each division is an operating
segment as defined by IFRS 8 in that the Board assess performance and allocates resources at this level. All of the
divisions have been aggregated in to one reporting segment on the basis that they share similar economic
characteristics including:

e National supply agreements are in place for key mputs mcludmg materials and certain overheads
e Debt is raised centrally and the cost of capital is the same at each division.

e - Sales demand at each d1v1510n is subject to the same macro economlc factors, such as mortgage availability and
government pohcy

Additional information on average selling prices and the unit sales split between north, south, private and social has
been included in the Operating Review on pages 13 to 18. The Board does not, however, consider these categories
to be-separate reportable segments as they review the entire opérations at a consolidated and lelSlonal level when
assessing performance and making decisions about the allocation of resources.

:

3 Expenses and auditor’s remunération )
i 2016 . 2015 -
£000 . £000 .

Included in operating profit are the following: i ’ .

- Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment : - S (152) (247)
(Loss)/profit on sale of investment properties ' 148 (1,116)
Exceptional profit (note 7) : : (7,041) - (6,865)
Depreciation of property, plant.and machmery ’ 2,900 2,633
Hire of plant and machinery : . 13,844 ’ 12,755
Operating lease charges for land and bulldmgs . 2,154 1,609

Auditor’s remuneration: ) . . < R
Audit of these financial statements ' ’ . o 154 " 149
Other services relating to taxation o 15 42
Pension scheme audits . 4 .4

173 195

. .
4 .. Employee information

- The average number of persons employed by the Company during the year was 2,366 (2015 - -2,162) comprising 810
(2015-706) administrative and 1,556 (2015-1,456) production and others employed in h0usebulldmg and assomated
trading activities.

The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were as follows: B
C ' : : 2016 ' 2015

£000 , £000

Wages and salaries . ’ 117,218 101,868

Social security _ . , 11,615 9,575
Pension costs (note 24) . - 4,514 3,882

Share-based payments (note 24) . 1,568 - 1,544

134,912 116,869
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4 Employee information (continued)

Key management personnel remuneration, including directors, comprised:

e ‘ -2016.

£000

Salaries and fees : ’ . : 2,506

Taxable benefits - . : 125

Annual bonus — cash ‘ ' : S 2,054

Pension costs ' : ' - ) 141

Share-based payments . : 995
' 5,821 .

31 July 2016

2015
£000

5,381

Key rha_nagement personnel, as disclosed under 1AS 24 ‘Related party 'disclt)_s'ures’, .comprises the directors and

other senior operational management.

5 Directors’ remuneration : )

2016
£000

Directors’ emoluments - 2,555

2015
£000

12,403

The aggregate of emoluments of the hlghest paid director was £1,482,511 (2015 - £1,387, 238) mcludmg a payment

in lieu of pension scheme of £103,232 (201 5 - £63,180) made by the Company.

-All of the directors are also directors of the Company’s holding company, Bellway p.l.c. The emoluments above

relate to their semces to the Group as a whole and not just to Bellway Homes Limited.

Full details of the emoluments of these directors are disclosed in the financial statements of Bellway p.l.c., which

can be obtamed from the address given in note 26.

Number ofdlrectors

2016

Number of directors who exercised share options in Bellway p.l.c. during the year . "2

. 2015

2
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6 Finance income and expenses _
‘ ' 2016 2015
£000 £000
' Interest receivable on bank deposits . ' 274 427
Interest on fair value through profitorloss = = C 533 ' -
Other interest income o ' : : 493 ‘ 639
_ Finance income ' - ‘ . 1,300 1,066
" Interest payab‘le on bank loans and overdrafts o . ;1,497 . 6,888
. Interest on deferred term land payables . . i 7,589 6,580
Interest element of movement in pensnon scheme deﬁmt ’ . 240 251
Finance expenses ' A 12,326 13,719
7 Exceptio'nal items

Exceptional items are those which, in the opinion of the Dnrectors, are material by size or nature, non- recurrmg, and
of such significance that they require separate dlsclosure on the face of the income statement

On 7 March 2016, the Group disposed of its entlre interest in Barking Riverside lelted, its joint venture company
with the Greater London Authority, to L&Q New Homes Limited. Bellway will receive total consideration with a
fair value of £43.5 million over the next three years, including £17.0 million received in March on completion. -The-
deferred consideration is recognised at fair value through profit or loss (note 18). In addition to the disposal
proceeds, the Group will be relieved from its substantial funding obligations with regards to the ongoing
remediation and infrastructure requirements of this long-term, capital intensive site. The profit of £7.0 mxlhon

arising on dlsposal has been treated as an exceptlonal item during the year ended 31 July 2016.

On 22 May 2015 the Company sold its remaining shared interest assets. (note 14) for cash consideration of £32.462
million. This resulted in a profit on disposal of £6.865 million. This was treated as an exceptlonal item in the prior
year

8 Income tax expense

Recognised in the income statement -

2016 2015
. £000 £000
Current tax expense: _
UK corporation tax ) ) 95,577 70,205
Adjustment in respect of prior years ) (592) (566)
- 94,985 - 69,639
Deferred tax income/(expense): . i
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 43 820
Reduction in tax rate L ' ' (278) -
Adjustments in respect of prior years . 18 79
217) 899
Total income tax expense in income statement ' 94,768 . 70,538
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8 Income tax expense (continued)
Reconciliation of effective tax rate: L . o
: : 2016 2016 2015 2015
% : £000 % "£000
Profit before taxation. - o 487,463 - 351,317
Tax calculated at UK corporation tak rate ©20.0 97,493 20.7 72,723
Enhanced deductions and non-taxable deductions . (0.5) (2,151) (0.5) (1,698)
Adjustments in respect of prior years - current tax ] -(0.1) (592) 0.1) (566)
’ - deferred tax : - 18 - 79
Effective tax rate and tax expense for the year ) 194 94,768 20.1 70,538

The corporation tax rate redﬁced to 21% with effect from 1 April 2014, and to 20% with effect from 1 April 2015.

The deferred tax assets/(liabilities) held by the Company at the start of the comparative year that were expected to
be realised after 31 March 2015 were valued at 20%, the substantively enacted tax rate that will be effective when
~ they are realised.. ’

The deferred tax assets/(liabilities) held by the Company at the start of the current-year have been revalued at the
substantively enacted corporation tax rate that will be effective when they are expected to be realised.

Reduction in the UK corporation tax to 19% from April 2017 and to 18% from April 2020 have been announced,

‘and were substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, so these changes are not reflected in these financial

statements. A further reduction in the UK corporation tax rate, from the aforementioned April 2020 rate of 18%, to
. 17% has been announced but was not substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. '

The effective income tax charge is 19.4% of profit before taxation (2015 — 20.1%) and compares favourably to the
Company’s standard tax rate for the year of 20% (2015 — 20.7%). The lower effective tax rate in the current year is
principally due to the non-taxable exceptional profit arising on the disposal of the Company’s investment in Barking
Riverside Limited (note 7) and enhanced tax deductions received by the Company in relation to land remediation
- relief. ) ' E

2016 . 2015

) : - £000 £000
Deferred tax recognised directly in equity:
(Charge)/credit relating to equity-settled transactions . . - (309) 252 °
(Charge)/credit relating to measurements on the defined benefit pension scheme A . (136) 648
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9 " Property, plant and equipment

Cost

At 1 August 2014

Additions
Disposals

At 1 August 2015
Additions
Disposals

At 31 July-2016

Depreciation

At 1" August 2014
" Charge for year
On disposals .

. At 1 August 2015
Charge for year
On disposals.

At 31 July 2016

Net boék value
At 31 July 2016

. At31 July 2015

At 31 July 2014

Strategic Report, Directors’ Report

Freehold
~land and
building

£000 -

1,985
1,297

3,448

438
48

486

65

551

2,897

© 2,796

1,547

Plant,
fixtures and
fittings
£000

16,654 -

4,107
(3,008)

17,753
3,208

(1,892)

19,069

7,436

7,262

5,867

Bellway Homes Limited
and financial statements -

31 July 2016
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_ 10 ' Investment property

Cost
At 1 August 2014
Additions
Disposals

At’l August 2015
Additions
Disposals

" At 31 July 2016

Deprec:alwn
At August 2014, 1 August 2015 and 31 July 2016

~ Net book vqlué :
At 31 July 2014, 31 July 2015 and 31 July 2016.

11 Investments in subsidiaries and joint arrangements

The Company has the folloWing.investménts in subsidiaries and joint afrangements':

. Country of
Name ) incorporation.
Subsidiaries . _ :
The Victoria Dock Company Limited . England and Wales
Joint arrangements - K :
Barking Riverside Limited ’ ‘ England and Wales
Cramlington Developments Limited . England and Wales
Fradley Residential LLP =~ . ) England and Wales
Leebell Developments Limited - England and Wales
Ponton Road LLP . England and Wales
Other entities
HBF Insurance PCC Limited

MI New Home Insurance PCC Limited

~

Class of share héld
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

. Ordinary

Ordinary

. Bellway Homes Limited
Strateglc Report, Directors’ Report and financial statements .
: 31 July 2016

2016

60%

50%
50%
- 50%
50%

Total
£000

5,083
“(5,083)

Ownership

2015
60%
51%
50%

50% -
50%.
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11 _  Investments in subsidiaries and joint arrangements (continued)

~ In addition the Company owns 25% - 50% of the ordinary share capital of several smaller entities which aré not

considered to be significant. . )
Loans to joint ‘Shares in group
arrangements . undertakings : Total

. £000 £000 £000

Cost ‘ :

At 1 August 2014 o 35,632 . 4,369 _ 40,001

Additions ) ' 3,331 : 157 : 3,488

‘At 1 August 2015 _ 38,963 : 4,526 .7 43,489

Additions : A 2,050 Q) 2,047

Disposals . (36,456) ) - (36,456)

At 31 July 2016 - 4,557 4,523 9,080
- Provisions

At 1 August 2014 - 4,327 4,327

Charge for year . - 157 157

At 1 August 2015 o ; S ' 4,484 4,484

Credit for year . - : ’ - 3). . 3)

At 31 July 2016 - : ) ' ) - 4,481 : 4,481

Net book t{alué . . : '

- At 31 July 2016 o . 4,557 ’ 42 - 4,599
At 31 July 2015 ' : . 38,963 - . 42 39,005
At 31 July 2014 : . 35,632 -4 35,674
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12 Deferred taxation

The following are the deferred tax assets recognised by the Company and the movements thereon during the current
. -and prior year: : : .
Retirement : . Share-

' Capital ) benefit . based

allowances obligations payment . Total

£000 - £000 £000 -~ £000

At 1 August 2014 ) 69 1,586 970 - . 2,625
Income statement (charge)/credit T (203) (743) | 47 . (899)

Credit to statement of comprehensive income : - 648 - ) 648

Credit to equity - - C - 252 . 252

At31 July 2015 (134) 1,491 1,269 2,626

Income statement credit ’ S 92 - 76 217
Charge to statement of comprehensive income - -(136) - : (136).
Charge to equity - - (304) T (304)

At 31 July 2016 v a . C T (89) 1,447 A ' -1,041 ) 2,403

13 Inventories

‘ 2016 2015

£000 ‘ . £000

Land ‘ ' 1,625,131 1,306,670

Work in progress 835,915 763,507

Showhomes ' ' , 70,357 57,491

Part-exchange properties : : . o 16,283 . 17,167

2,547,686 2,144,835

Iriventories of £1,630.3 million were expensed in the year (20)5 - £1,306.3 million).

In the ordinary course of business inventories have been written back by a net £9.2 million (2015 - £10.7 million) in
. the year.

Land with a carrying value of £109.9 million (2015 - £83.2 million) was used as security for land payables (note'17).

The directors consider all inventories to be essentially current in nature although the Company’s operational cycle is
such that a proportion of inventories will not be realised within 12 months. It is not possible to determine with
accuracy when specific inventory will be realised as this is subject to a number of issues including consumer
demand and planning permission delays.
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14 Other financial assets

2016. . 2015

£000 £000
At1 August ' o : 4 ; 28393
Additions : . ) . . ) - 3,484
Redemptions . : - (31,793)
Imputed interest - 34

At 31 July . . ] - -

Other financial assets carried at fair value are categorised as level 3 within the hierarchical classification of IFRS 7
Revised (as defined within the standard) On 22 May 2015 the Company sold its remammg interest in shared equity -
assets (note 7). -

Other financial assets previously comprised loans, largely with non-fixed repayment dates and variable repayment
amounts, provided as part of sales transactions that are secured by way of a second legal charge on the related
property. The assets were recorded at fair value,- being the estlmated amount receivable by the Company,
discounted to present day values.

_The fair value of future anticipated cash receipts takes into account the directors’ view .of significant unobservable
inputs including future house price movements, the expected timing of receipts and the likelihood that a purchaser
defaults on a repayment. The directors revisited the future anticipated cash receipts from the assets at the end of
each reporting period.

The difference between the anticipated future receipt and the initial fair value was charged over the estimated
deferred term to cost of sales, with the financial asset increasing to its full expected cash settlement value on the
anticipated receipt date. The imputed interest credited to cost of sa]es for the year ended 31 July 2015 was £0.084 -
million.

Credit risk, which the directors currently considered to be largely mitigated through holding a second legal charge
over the assets, was used in determining present values.- The directors review the financial assets for impairment at
the end of each reporting period. :

At initial recognition, the fair value of the assets is calculated using a discount rate, appropriate to the class of assets,
which reflects market conditions at the date of entering into the transaction. The directors considered at the end of
each reporting period whether the initial market discount rate still reflects up to date market conditions. If a revision
is required, the fair-value of the asset is re-measured at the present value of the revised future cash flows using this
revised discount rate; the difference between this value and the carrying value of the asset is recorded agamst the
carrying value of the asset and recogmsed directly in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The directors consrdered that there was no material difference between the initial market discount rate and the
market rate at 22 May 2015, the date of disposal, and accordingly did not recognised any movements directly within
the Statement of Comprehensive Income: .
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' 15  Trade and other receivables

Current receivables

Trade receivables -

Other receivables ]
Prepayments and accrued income
Amounts owed by related parties (note 25)

Non-current receivables
Other receivables

_ Bellway Homes Limited
Strategic Report, Directors’ Report and financial statements

31 July 2016

The Company assesses the ageing of trade receivables in terms of whether amounts are recelvable in less than one
year or more than one year. None of the trade receivables are past thelr due dates (201 5- nil).

Other receivables due within one year. include £22.219 million (2015 £18.754 mzllzon) in relation to VAT

" recoverable.

16 . Interest bearing loans and borrowings

Cu rreni liabilities
Bank loans
Bank overdrafts

2016
£000

32,500
3,182

35,682

2015
£000
80,000
13,753

93,753
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17  Trade and other payables

2016 2015

. . £000 £000
Non-current liabilities : i :

Land payables ' L 82,959 ' 49,897

Land payables of £16.448 million (2015 - £26.798 million) are secured on the land to which they relate. The v
carrying value of the land used for security is £16.183 million (2015 £24.462 million). :

2016 2015
£000 £000 -
Current liabilities _ g : : )
Trade payables - : ' A 215,756 209,161
Land payables o , ) 221,201 149,897
Social security and other taxes ) ’ ‘ 4,051 . " 3,836
Other payables - ' C 2,278 . 3,837
Amounts owed to Group undertakings (note 25) : ' 573,495 514,290°
" Accrued expenses and deferred income . . . 71,416 68,581
Payments on account . ' . 147,900 - 98,762
1,242,097 1,048,364

Land payables of £95.400 million (2015 - £60.465 million) are secured on the land to which they relate. The
carrying value of the land used for security is £93.696 million-(2015 - £58.745 million).

18 Financial risk management

Land purchased on deferred térms

The ‘Company sometimes acquires land on defefred payment terms. In accordance with IAS 39 “Financial

" . Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ the creditor is recorded at fair value being the price paid for the land

discounted to present day and subsequently at amortised cost. The difference between the nominal value and the
initial fair value is amortised over the deferred term to financial expense, increasing the land creditor to its full cash
settlement value on the payment date.

The maturity profile of the total contracted cash payments in respect of amounts due on land creditors at the balance

sheet date is as follows:
Total Within one .
Balance at contracted year or on . More than

31 July cash payment demand 1-2 years 2-5 years S years

£000 - - £000 £000 £000 _ £000 . £000

At 31 July 2016 ‘ . 304,160 - 310,271 223,016 - 52,563 34,692 Co-
At 31 July 2015 : 199,794 203,845 151,372 45,644 N 6,829 -
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18 Financial risk management (continued)

Land purchased on deferred terms (continued)

‘The maturity profile of the total contracted payments in respect of fmancnal liabilities (excluding amounts due on
land creditors shown separately above) is as follows: '

" Total  Within one

Balance at ~ contracted year or on ) ' More tﬁan
31 July cash payment demand 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years
£000 o £000 - £000 £000 £000 £000
Bank loans — floating rates 32,500 32,526 32,526 2 - - .-
Trade and other payables : : ’
(excluding amounts owed - :
to Group companies) 222,085 222,085 222,085 - - -
At 31 July 2016 ‘ - 254,585 254,611 254,611 - - -
Bank loans — floating rates 80,000 80,163 80,163 - ) - ‘ -
Trade and other payables
(excluding amounts owed . . ’ S
to Group Companies) . 216,834 216,834 216,834 - - -
At 31 July 2015 - 296,834 . 296,997 296,997 - . -

The imputed interest rate on land payables reflects market mterest rates available to the Company on ﬂoatmg rate
bank loans at the time of acquiring the land. : .

At the year end, the Company had £467.5 mllllon (2015 £320 0 million) of undrawn bank facnlmes available.

Cash and cash equivalents N _ .

This comprises cash held by the Company and short-term bank deposits with a maturity date of less than one month.
The amounts of cash and casﬁ equivalents for the years ended 31 July 2016 and 31 July 2015 are shown in note 21.

At 31 July 2016 the average net interest rate earned on the temporary closmg cash balance was 0.46% (2015 -
0.50%). :

Fair values
The carrying values of financial assets reasonably apbroXimate their fair value.

Financial assets and liabilities by category . '
2016 - 2015

£000 ; £000

. Fair value through profit or loss o B 27,430 ‘ -
Loans and receivables . ) - . 47,105 55,625 -
Financial liabilities at amortised cost =~ _ (1,131,371) - (1,020,835)
(1,056,836)' (965,210)
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18 - Financial risk management (continued)
Capital management and bank facilities

The Company is financed through the proceeds of issued ordinary shares, re-invested profits, bank borrowings less
cash in hand and amounts owed to Group undertakmgs The following table analyses the Company’s capital
- structure: i

2016 2015
£million - £million
Equity o S ‘ 1,251.9 1,029.9
Net bank debt | 195 829
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 573.5 514.3
Capital employed o " 1,844.9 1,627.1

The Company has a strong balance sheet and with bank facilities of £500 million, Bellway is well positioned to -
deliver further growth if market conditions will allow. The Company’s banking facnlmes pr0v1de flexibility and
expire durmg the course of the following financial years:

. 2016 2015

£million £million
By 31July 2016 T - 80
By 31 July 2017 o - ' 70 70
By 31 July 2018 ' e 50 50
By 31 July 2019 . ‘125 ©25
By 31 July 2020 - N £ 175
By 31 July 2021 : g0 ;
Total ‘ . ' 500 - ~ 400
19  Share capital »
' A 2016 2015
o ' £000 - - £00‘0
Allotted, called up and fully paid v ‘ : ‘
800,000 Ordinary shares of £1 each ’ 800 . 800
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20 Reconciliation of net cash flow to net debt .
' 2016 . 2015
£000 £000
Increase iﬁ net cash and cash equivalents . : A 15,982 5,608 '
Decrease/(increase) in bank borrowings o 47,500 (50,000)
Decrease in net debt/(cash) from cash flows ' ] 63,482 (44,392)
Net debt at 1 August : " (82,950) (38,558)
Net debt at 31 July - : : . (19,468) (82,950)
21 Analysis of net debt
' At1 August Cash At 31 July
2015 i flows 2016
' £000 - £000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents ' : 10,803 5,411 16214
" Bank overdraft - . (13,753) 10,571 (3,182)
Net cash and cash equivalents o . (2,950) © 15,982 13,032
_"Bank loans : , © (80,000) " 47,500 (32,500)
Netdebt - S S (82,950) 63,482 (19,468)
22 Contingent liabilities

The Company is liable, jointly and severally with other members of the Group, under guarantees given by the banks .

- to or on behalf of other Group.undertakings. At 31 July 2016 there were Group bank overdrafts of £nil (2015 - £nil)
and loans of £32.5 - million (2015 - £80.0 million). The Company has given performance and other trade guarantees .
on behalf of subsidiary undertakings. The Company has guaranteed the overdrafts of joint arrangements up to a

- maximum of £0.3 million (2015 - £0.3 million). 1t is the directors’ expectatlon that the possibility of cash outflows
on these liabilities is considered minimal and no provnslon is required.
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23 Commitments
' 2016 2015
£000 ‘ £000
" Capital commitments
Contracted not provided - ’ . ' 200 .67

Authorised not contracted

.l

Operating leases

At the balance sheet date, the Company had outstandmg commltments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases, which expire as follows

2(_)16 2015

£000 £000
Expiring within one year A ) A 36 . . 31
Expiring within the second to fifth years ) 1,186 1,383 .
Expiring in more than five years . 2,315 -

3,537 1,414

Operatmg lease payments principally relate to rents payable by the Company for office premises. These leases are
subject to penodlc rent reviews.

24 Employee benefits _ . : -

a) Retirement benéﬁt'obllgatlons

The Company sponsors the Bellway plc 1972 Pension Scheme (the 'Scheme') which has a funded defined beneﬁt
arrangement whlch is closed to new members and to future service accrual.

The Company also sponsors the Bellway plc 2008 Group Self Invested Personal Pension Plan (GSIPP) whlch isa
defined contribution contract-based arrangement. :

Contributions of £4.514 million (2015 -.£3.882 mzllzon) were charged to the income statement for the GSIPP.
Defined contributions have been excluded from the assets and liabilities.
Role of trustees

The Scheme is managed by the Trustees, who are appointed by either the Company or the members. The role of the
Trustees is to manage the Scheme in line with the Scheme trust deed and rules, to act prudently, responsibly and
honestly, impartially and in the interests of all beneficiaries. The main responsibilities of the Trustees are to agree
with the employer the level of contributions to the Scheme and to make sure thesé are paid, to decide how the
Scheme’s assets are invested so the Scheme is able to meet its liabilities, and to oversee that the payment of benefits,
record keeping and administration of the Scheme complies with the Scheme trust deed and rules and legislation.
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24 Employee benefits (continued)

Funding

UK leglslatnon requires that pension schemes are funded prudently (i.e.-to a.level in excess of the current expected
cost of providing benefits). The last full actuarial valuation of the Scheme was carried out by a qualified
independent actuary as at 31 July 2014 and updated on an approximate basis to 31 July 2016. .

With regard to the Scheme, regular contributions made by the employer over the financial year were £1.21 million
(2015 - £0.77 million). The employer paid no special contributions (2015 - £3.20 million) and reimbursed the
pension fund £0.25 million (2015: £nil million) for expenses incurred by the fund.

The Company is expected to make regular contributions of £nil million during the year ending 31 July 2017.
Regulation '

The UK pensions market is regulated by the Pensions Regulator whose key statutory objectives in relation to UK
defined benefit plans are: .

e to protect the benefits of members of occupational pension schemes;
e to promote, and to improve understanding of the good administration of work-based pension schemes;

e to reduce the risk of situations arising which may lead to comperrsation being payable.from the Pension
Protection Fund, and

e to maximisé employer compliance with employer duties and the employment safeguards introduced by the
" Pensions Act 2008. "

- Risk _
The Scheme exposes the Company to a number of risks, the most significant are:

Risk : , . Description

- The Scheme's defined benefit obligation is calculated using a
discount rate set with reference to corporate bond yields.
However, a significant proportion of the Scheme's.assets are
invested in growth assets, such as equities, that would be_

. expected to outperform corporate bonds in the long-term but
create volatility and risk in the short-term.

Asset volatility

A significant proportion of the Scheme's defined benefit
obligation is linked to inflation, with higher inflation
increasing the liabilities. However, there are caps of either a
3% p.a. or 5% p.a. increase in place to limit the effect of higher
_inflation

Inflation risk

The majority of the Scheme's liabilities are to provide a
pension for the life:of the member, with any increase-in life
expectancy also increasing the Scheme's defined benef t-
obligation. -

Life expectancy
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Movements in net defined benefit obligations

Balance at 1 August

Included in the income statement
Interest (cost)/income

Included in other comprehensive expense

Remeasurement (loss)/gain arising from:
- Change in demographic and
financial assumptions
- Experience adjustments
Return on plan assets excluding interest
income

Other '
Contributions paid by the employer
Benefits paid

Balance at 31 July

Bellway Homes Limited
Strategic Report, Dlrectors Report and financial statements

31 July 2016

Defined Fair value of Net defined benefit
benefit obligation Scheme assets . liability
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

(54,721) (50,364) . 47,269 - 42,432 (7,452) (7,932)
(1,924) (2,080) 1,684 1,829 (240) ' (251)
(1,924) (2,080) 1,684 1,829 (240) (251)
(6,834) (4,461) - - (6,834) (4,461)
1,018 478 - - 1,018 478

- T 4010 744 4,010 744

7
(5,816) (3,983) 4,010 744 - (1,806) (3,239)

: - 1462 3970 1,462 3,970
2,552 1,706 - (2,552) - (1,706) - -
2,552 1,706 (1,090) 2,264 1,462 3,970

(59,909) (54,721) 51,873 47,269 (8,036) (7,452)

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation at:the end of the repomng period is 17 years (2015 -

17 years).
Scheme assets

The fair value of the scheme assets is:

Equity instruments — quoted
Corporate bonds
Government bonds

Cash and cash equivalents

Total

2016
£000

25,933
10,456
13,616

1,868

51,873

2015
£000

28,007

16,431

2,432
399 .

47,269

Eqiufy instruments and government bonds have qudted prices in active markets. Other plan assets are not quoted in
active markets. All government bonds are issued by the UK governments and are AA minus rated (2015: AAA

minus rated).
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24~ Employee benefits (continued)

Actuarial assumptions

The folIoWing are the principal actuarial assnmptions at the reporting date: -

2016

% per annum

Discount rate , - 2.40
Future salary increases . ) : . . 3.50
Allowance for pension in payment increases of RPI or 5% pa if less . 2.90
Allowance for deferred pension increases of CPI or 5% pa if less 2.00
Allowance for commutation of pension for cash-at retirement : 50% of
. : Maximum

The mortality assumptions adopted at 31 July 2016 are based on the S2PxA tables and allow for future improveﬁent_

_in mortality. The tables used imply the following life expectancies at age 65:.

Male retiring at age 65 in 2016

Female retiring at age 65 in 2016

Male retiring at age 65 in 2036
.Female retiring at age 65-in 2036

- Sensitivities

2015
% per annum

3.60

3.90

3.40

2.40

50% of
maximum

23.3 years
25.3 years
. 25.5 years
27.7 years

The calculation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to the assumptions set out above. The following table -
summarises the effect on the defined beneﬁt obligation at the end of the reportmg period if different assumptions

were used:
. . " Change in
Assumption : ) assumption
Discount rate ' : o © -0.25%pa
- Future salary increases : . . +0.25% pa
Inflation —-RPI ~ ' i +0.25% pa
Mortality . - S .+ 1year life expectancy

Change in

liabilities (%)

Increase by 4.3%

Increase by 0.2%
Increase by 3.7%
Increase by 3.1%

~ The calculations for the sensitivity analysis are not as accurate as a full valuation carried out using thése
assumptions. Each assumption change is considered in isolation, which in practice is unlikely to occur, as changes .

in some of the assumptions are correlated. -

b) Share-based payments

The Cornpany operates a long-term incentive plan (‘LTIP’), a share matching plan (‘SMP”), a deferred bonus plan
(‘DBP’), employee share option schemes ( ESOS’ ) and Savmgs Related Share Optlon Schemes.(* SRSOS ), all of

which are detalled below.

" Awards under the LTIP and SMP have been made to executiveA directors, the Group Genéral_Counsel and Company
Secretary, and senior employees, with awards under the DBP also made to senior employees. The awards take the

form of ordinary shares in the parent Company.
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24 Employee benefits (continued)

Share options 1ssued under the Bellway p.lc. (1995) Employee Share Optlon Scheme (* 1995 ESOS’y have been
granted to employees at all levels as well as to executive directors. The last tranche of shares was awarded to
directors in October 2003. No further options may be granted under this scheme. Options issued under the Bellway
p.l.c. (1996) Employee Share Option Scheme (‘1996 ESOS’) have been granted to employees at all levels as well as
to executive directors. The last tranche of shares was awarded to employees in May 2006. No further options may
be granted under this scheme. The Bellway p.l.c. (2005) Employee Share Option Scheme (‘2005 ESOS’) replaces
the 1995 ESOS. Awards may be granted on a discretionary basis to employees at all levels as well as to executive
directors and are subject to performance conditions. The Bellway p.l.c. (2007) Employee Share Option Scheme
(‘2007 ESOS’) replaces the 1996 ESOS. Tt is an unapproved discretionary scheme which provides for the grant of .
" options over ordinary shares to employees and executive directors. It-is, however, the current intention that no
executive directors of the Company should be granted options under these schemes. Awards will be available to vest -
after three years, subject to objective performance targets. .

Options issued underthe SRSOS are offered to all employees-including the executive directors.

An outline of the performance conditions in relation to the LTIP and the SMP is detailed under the long-term
_ incentive scheme section on pages 61 to 64 within the Report of the Board on Directors’ Remuneratlon in' the
Bellway p.l.c. 2016 Annual Report and Accounts.

Various small share option awards were made for years 2003 through to 2007 to employees, mainly at divisional
" management level, under the term of the DBP. These shares are held in the Bellway Employee Share Trust (1992)
normally for three years. The shares can then be transferred into the employee's name.

Share-based payments have been valued by an external third party using various models detailed overieaf, based on
publicly available market data at the time of the grant, which the directors consxder to be the most appropnate
method of determining their fair value. .

The number and weighted average exercise price of share based payments is as follows:

-LTIP, SMP and DBP ’
' 2016 2015
*Number of Number of

options options -
Outstanding at the beginning of the year . . -303,744 294,402
Granted during the year ) 90,969 - 117,458
' Lapsed during the year ' : (34,754) (37,489)
Exercised during the year . ) ) (55,823) (70,627)
Outstanding at the end of the year : o . 304,136 303,744

Exercisable at the end of the year - -

The options outstanding at 31 July 2016 have a weighted average contractual life of 1.3 years (2015 - 1.5 years).
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1995, 1996, 2005 and 2007 ESOS, and SRSOS . ‘
2016 2015

Number of Number of
. options - options
Outstanding at the beginning of the year ) ‘ 561,387 » 731,582 .
Granted during the year 153,473 250,405
- Lapsed during the year - - (44,302)
"Forfeited during the year - (42,994) (45,761) -
Exercised during the year ) . : o (164,071) (330,537) " -
Outstanding at the end of the year ’ } 507,795 . 561,387 -
Exercisable at the end of the year o ' 781 . 14,000

The options outsfa'nding at 31 July 2016 have an exercise price in the range of 556.0p to 2,048.8p (2015 — 439.6p to
1,470.0p) and have a weighted average contractual life of 2.3 years (2015 - 2.4 years). The weighted average share
price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the year was 2,656.1p (2015 - 1,842.2p). '

Valuation methodology

For LTIP and SMP optlons granted after 24 October 2011 half of the performance criteria is based on TSR against

. comparator companies with the other half based on TSR measuréd against the FTSE 250 Index (excluding '
investment trusts and financial service companies). A simplified Monte Carlo simulation method has been used to
determine the Group's TSR performance against the FTSE 250 Index (excluding investment trusts and financial
service compames) :

In the case of the DBP, a simplified Black Scholes method is applied with an exercise price and dividend yield of
zero. This is because no performance conditions attach to the award and no dividends.are credited to the individual.
* The result is that the fair value equates to the face value of the award.

The Black Scholes method is used for the SRSOS due to the relatively short exercise window of six months.

For the 1995, 1996, 2005 and 2007 ESOSs, a lattice method is used which enables early exercise behaviour to be
modelled in a more sophisticated manner than under Black Scholes.

The fair value of services received in return for share options granted is measured by reference to the fair valug of
the share options granted The inputs into the models for the various grants in the current and previous year were as
follows:

2016 2015
" .November January November November December November November - November December " December
2015 - 2016 . 2015 2015 2015 - 2014 2014 - 2014 2014 2014
Scheme LTIP LTIP 3 year S year DBP LTIP 3 year 5 year © SMP DBP
_description SRSOS SRSOS SRSOS SRSOS
Grant date’ 12 Nov'15 20Jan16 16Nov15 16Nov15 . 15Dec15 10Novli4 17 Nov 14 17 Nov 14 4 Dec 14 22 Dec 14
Risk frec . . 0.0%  0.0% 0.9% - 1.4% 0.0% 0.0% C1.0% 1.5% 0.0% 0.0%
interest rate . . .
Ex:ercise - - 2,048.8p °  2,048.8p ’ - . 1,378.0p 1,378.0p - -
price .
Shareprice  2,382.0p  2,558.0p  24060p  2406.0p - 2,7720p  16740p  17830p  17830p  19190p 1,935.0p
at date of ' . :
grant ’ .
Expected 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% ‘n/a 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% n/a n/a
dividend . . ' :
yield .
Expected life 3 years Jyears 3Jyears2 - Syears2 3 years 3 years 3years2 | Syears2 3 years . 3 years
. months -months months months ' )
Vesting date 12 Nov 18 20 Jan 19 1 Feb 19 1 Feb 21 1SDec 18 10Nov17 1Feb 18 1 Feb 20 4 Dec 17 22 Dec 17
Expected ' 25% 25% 25% 30% n/a 30% 30% 30% 30% nfa
volatility . . : .
Fair value of 1,267p . 1,701p 481p ’ 617p 2,772p 950p 480p 517p 1,296p 1,935p
option P . :
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The expected volatility for all models was determined by considering the volatility levels hlstoncally for the Group.
Volatility. levels for more recent years were: considered to have more relevance than earlier years for the period

revnewed

. The Company recognised total expenses of £1. 568 lTll”lOl'l (2015 £1 544 mtl/zon) in relatlon to equity-settied share-

based payment transactions.

25 * Related party transactions

Key management personnel comprises of the directors and other senior operational management (see note 4).

Bellway Homes Limited is a subsidiary undertaking of Bellway p.l.c. which is the ultimate parent company. During
the year the Company entered into the-following related party transactions with associated group undertakings.

Transactions with
Group undertakings '
Sale of new homes
Purchase of investment
properties

Purchase of other
financial assets
Administrative fees paid
in respect of part-
exchange properties
Rent paid for office
premises

Other balances

Transactions with joint
.arrangements -
Interest received on ]oan
Loan to joint
arrangements

Land purchase
Management fee

Transactions with
parent company

- Net amounts owed in )
" respect of dividends, share .

issues and finance
expenses,

Total

Analysed as:

. Amounts payableto

Amounts receivable

Trade and other receivables (note 15)

Investments (note 11)

'Purchases/e'xpenses Sales/income ‘related parties from related parties
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

- - - 130 - - - -

590 5,083 - - 5673 5083 - -

- 3,484 - - 3,484 3,484 - -
2,534 2,505 - - 335 480 - -
1,085 758 - - - - - -

- - - - 21,237 21,314 856 856

- - 94 558 - - - -

- - - - - - .. 4,557 38,963
5,156 5,672 - - - - - -

- Co- 165 228 - - - -
112,324 72,178 - - 542,766 483,929 - -
121,689 89,680 259 916 573,495 514,290 5,413 39,819
856 856

'4,557 38,963

5413 © 39,819
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25 Related party transactions (continued)

In addition the Company had net other payables of £18 ,591 million (2015 - £1 8.591 million) in respect of historical
balances with other Group undertakings.

The Company has entered into guarantees over bank loans and borrowings of other group compames The total
value of such borrowings was £0.3 million (2015 - £0.3 million). -~ C

The Company has suffered no expense in respect of bad or doubtful debts of Group undertakings in the year (2015 -
£nil). .

26 Ultimate parent company and parent undertaking of larger group »

The Company is a subsidiary undertaking of Bellway p.l.c. which is the ultimate parent company mcorporated in the
UK. The ultimate controlling party is Bellway p.lc.

The largest group in which the results of the Company are consolldated is that headed by Bellway p.l.c. No other
Group financial statements include the results of the Company. The consolidated financial statements of Bellway
p.l.c. are available to the public and may be obtained from the Group Company Secretary and Legal Counsel,
Bellway p.l.c. Seaton Bum House; Dudley Lane, Seaton Burn, Newcastle upon Tyne, NE13 6BE.
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